G BHERBEEERAS)

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD.

REFSHSEGEMAILNERLS

(a company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

STOCK CODE Agf5{3k: 2869




Z/MEE

CORE VALUES

= o
AN
PERFECTION




B3

SINCERITY

INTENTIONED

\IEEE,%:{&

IMPECCABILITY




Contents

H &%

Corporate Information

NEIEFR 3
Definitions

Bx 6
Company Overview

NGIL A 8
Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

BB EaBERE 11
Awards and Honors

HIE N ERE 17
Chairman’s Statement

RS 19
Management Discussion and Analysis

THEEN WM 22
Investor Relationship

KREERFR 42
Directors and Senior Management

EEkaMEERE 47
Report of Directors

EEEWE 56
Corporate Governance Report

EERME 89
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B - B RE AR 110
Independent Auditor’s Report

B AZEEN RS 131

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

reBm M EME R SR 144
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fRE AR R R 146
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

MEEREHR 148
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEREmER 150

Notes to the Financial Statements

Uy D 152



Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shou Bainian
Ms. Xia Yibo

Mr. Wang Guangjian (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Ka Yi (Chairman)

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Ng Sau Mei (ACIS, ACS)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Li Hairong
Mr. Wu Zhihua

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Exg
BTES
FB L (L)
CENSEICTEDSD
REREE
RSP S

FHITES
ERFLEE
—KZt
F iR (7 2020F1 F6 BEZE )

BYFHITES
ERRE ST A
EREELE
FREE
REELE (20201 F6BEZET)

EZEEY
ERB A (FE)
ERESLLE
ZREE
REFLF (20201 F6BEZET)

FHEEE
SERBE L (TE)
ERESLLE
ZREE
REFLE (20201 F6BEZET)

REZE®
BEEEEL(TE)
EMB B A
ZREE
REFLE (20201 F6BEZET)

REWE
EFHBL+ (ACIS, ACS)

REAER
FEB LT
REBSE

GRS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 * Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA



Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BMERPETEE XM
T E

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN CHINA

Block B

Xixi International Business Center

No. 767 West Wenyi Road

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province

The PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Rooms 1607-08, 16/F., Kai Tak Commercial Building
Nos. 317 & 319 Des Voeux Road Central

Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen'’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8th Floor Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR

LC Lawyers LLP

Suite 3106, 31/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

AT A TN T
NP 767 5%
PR BPR B I O
B

EBTEEEMY
BB LR

=B 317 & 31958

Rl 3 K= 1612 1607-08

TEROBFETE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

ERROBFERE
BERERREBELELBRAF
BBET
EERER183%
AR
17171281716 F

BB D
RERGHMEW
KA BERRIEH T
2% 2 2 2 B B
EARR

T8 109

AFARESE

SRR

I eSS 300

BRI RBREIEIIN
AEH—RE31#3106 =



Corporate Information

DNEEHR

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Agricultural Bank of China (Hangsan Road Branch)
283 Wensanxi Road

Xihu District, Hangzhou

Zhejiang Province

The PRC

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
1 Garden Road
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.lvchengfuwu.com

STOCK CODE
2869

LISTING DATE
12 July 2016

FEERRIT

B R TI = BT
Gile!

WTE

LN 25 4
3= P 2835

FEIRTT (BB BRAT]
N
TEEE — 5

NCIECE

www.lvchengfuwu.com

BRAD 18R

2869

L% BH

201657 412 H

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA

5



Definitions

B

2019 CIA Top Hundred Report” the "2019 China Top Hundred Property Management Companies Report”
published by China Index Academy in collaboration with China Property
Management Association (R Bl B2 1€ ) in June 2019

[2019 7 BliE B b B oa ¥R 5 FEIE BT FEBE N 2019 4F 6 AR EY R ERHE A F T (2019 B %
RIS B sR bR HATIRE)

“1H2019" First half of the financial year 2019, being six months ended 30 June 2019
(20195 L4 | - [ ¥4 2019 AR ) E£4F - BIEE 20195 6 A 30 B 1L/} MEA
"2H2019" Second half of the financial year 2019, being six months ended 31 December
2019
20195 T4~ [ ¥4 2019 M T4 - BIEZE 2019412 A31 HIEAREA
“Board” the board of Directors of our Company
[E£g AAFEFS
“China” or "PRC" the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report
and for geographic reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
[ ] hEARKNE  ERAFERERMWEBER2EMS - TEEESE  RFAREHE
"Company”, Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd. (4% ¥k AR 7% & [® B R A &), an exempted
"Greentown Service Group” or company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 24
"our Company” November 2014
[RE] - TRRBRTS ] 3 [ AR R RS EEABR AR - —FR2014F11 H24 BN A= B ST MR E#H
o] YNC]
“Director(s)” the director(s) of our Company
[E%] RRABEF
"Group”, "our Group”, “the Group”, our Company and its subsidiary(ies) from time to time or where the context so
“"we"”, "us”, or "our” requires, in respect of the period before our Company became the holding

company of our present subsidiaries, the business operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)

(2@ [AREE ] 5 T3] ARAREAKOMBAR  MEXEMAT AR FRRRBRANB R RRE
BRABRIMEE  EREMBARKENF AR RFBERME) LLNES

"GFA" Gross Floor Area

[mE7E ] R

“"Hong Kong” or "HK” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
[&#] REERBRRITRER

"HK$" or “HK dollars” the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[ BEREEER

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Definitions

B

"Reporting Period” or “Period”

[REHA] - [HA)

IIIRII
(B H R

“Listing"”
[

"Listing Date”

[ B

"Prospectus”

[HEkRE]

“"RMB" or “Renminbi”
[AR¥ ]

“Shares”
[ tn ]

usq m.”

(K]

"Stock Exchange”
[ B <2 P |

"US$
%5t

IIY/YII
&I

u%u

(Bt

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31 AL+ =@A

Investor Relationship

REERIER

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
AR B PR OB S FT EAR £ TH

12 July 2016, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings in the
Shares are permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange

PRDRB R E I Bt EEEM HE - 2201657 A 128

million

BE

the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2016
ARARBER2016F 6 A28 AMBRE

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of China

ARBTT  REEEEH

ordinary shares of nominal value of HK$0.00001 each in the share capital of
the Company
AR BIRR AR G AR TE 18 0.00001 7 7T 2 & i Ak

square meter

Fok

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERXHMABRAR

US dollar
=T

year-on-year

2

percent

B

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA

7



8

Company Overview

NI

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide, and is
based on owners’ full range of life scene and the entire life cycle of real
estate, and provide a wide range of services that are strongly
associated with life, which contains property service, community living
service and consulting service. We differentiate ourselves from other
property management service providers by providing our residents
with access to a broad products and services portfolio that addresses
the evolving everyday and life-style needs of our customers, property
owners and residents. In the “2019 China Property Service Top 100
Enterprises Research Results Conference” organized by China Index
Academy (a professional independent third-party Real Estate Research
Organization in China), we once again won the first place of “China’s
top 100 leading enterprises in terms of Property Service Satisfaction”.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES PORTFOLIO

J Property services. We provide a range of high quality property
management services, such as security, cleaning, gardening, and
repair and maintenance services, which we refer to collectively as
“standard” property management services, and charge the
residents and owners of our managed properties or real estate
developers management fees for such services. As at 31
December 2019, we managed properties located in 147 cities
across 29 provinces, direct-controlled municipalities and
autonomous regions across China with a total contracted GFA
under management of 212.4 million sq m. which covers high-end
residential, government public construction, commercial office
buildings, urban complex.

J Consulting services. We offer consulting services to real estate
developers and local property management companies to
address various needs that arise during each major stage
throughout the course of their property development projects,
capitalizing on our brand equity and expertise. For example, we
provide real estate developers with project planning, design
management, construction management and marketing
management consulting services during the design and
development stages and display unit management services to
facilitate sales of their developed projects. We also provide
management consulting services with respect to delivered
properties to real estate developers and property management
companies.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Company Overview

NCIE

Community living services. Based on the needs of the owners’ full
range of life scene, we provide property owners and residents of
our managed communities with access to an extensive array of
daily necessities complemented by a wide assortment of life-style
products and services through a variety of channels. Our services
under this segment include community products and services,
home living services, community space services, property asset
management services, cultural & education services. As the
needs of our owners and residents for better living have been
evolving, on the basis of innovation and promotion of traditional
service, we will continue to use the mobile Internet and the smart
Community portal, offer a wider range of services and products
to satisfy the customers, and combine online and offline service,
to broaden and accelerate the flow of life services.

BERRSE - RABEREINERFER
BRNER BBRSERBARMEE
BROXEREFPEH#SERTLEY
FmMEEREEEEMMRE - BR
R EmEREmR LIRS - RELER
B BEREERYE DEEEEER
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FHNEEMITENEERRE  SEE
BT AR EREE RIEOER L - &
MEEEEMBHEHPRESHEA
O - #FF e (78 48 3 8 A AR %5 A0 22 2K
mMEREF ARLETHEanTN
RMINRAEERE R REZEM °
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

mERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETT ARNKTR
Revenue WA 2,918,627 3,721,993 5,140,059 6,709,906 8,581,932
+/-% #m/m % 32.4% 27.5% 38.1% 30.5% 27.9%
Gross profit EH 530,925 716,027 946,390 1,197,653 1,547,109
+/-% R % 46.2% 34.9% 32.2% 26.5% 29.2%
Profit for the year FAFE 202,567 294,787 392,070 465,734 472,359
Net profit attributable to equity DA E
shareholders of the Company FE(E SR TS 197,818 285,540 387,483 483,296 477,405
+/-% BB % 32.6% 44.3% 35.7% 24.7% -1.2%
Earnings per share, FHEERER
(RMB) after listing (AR#) - 0.12 0.14 0.17 0.17
% of overall revenue [V ON
by service line REK
— Property services — MERT 71.6% 70.4% 69.3% 66.5% 63.5%
— Consulting services — FHARE 18.9% 16.6% 13.2% 14.0% 14.2%
— Community living services — B & R 9.5% 13.0% 17.5% 19.5% 22.3%
Overall revenue LU ON 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Profitability A=
Gross margin by service line BREBEINERER
— Property services — MERT 10.2% 10.9% 11.2% 11.4% 11.4%
— Consulting services — FHARE 33.9% 35.5% 36.1% 38.0% 33.6%
— Community living services — B & R 47.5% 43.5% 33.5% 25.5% 27.1%
Gross margin — overall FEHE — @ 18.2% 19.2% 18.4% 17.8% 18.0%
Net profit margin® SFAERO 6.8% 7.7% 7.5% 7.2% 5.6%

(
I

Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by revenue.

) VR R A 2 R 2 AR RREAEa FUBR AR

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B REESHIERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE

12

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT AR®TT AR%Tx
PROFIT OR LOSS B
Revenue — by service line WA — REHR
Property services MERK 2,090,872 2,619,927 3,559,644 4,460,669 5,452,031
+-% =,/ mD % 28.8% 25.3% 35.9% 25.3% 22.2%
Property under ERE RS
construction services 475,957 522,533 572,730 787,735 983,283
+/- % B m % 26.0% 9.8% 9.6% 37.5% 24.8%
% of total revenue of consulting 1B ABRS AU A
services % 86.4% 84.5% 84.2% 83.8% 80.8%
Management consulting services EIR AR 74,820 95,503 107,612 151,744 233,867
+/-% B, H % 21.5% 27.6% 12.7% 41.0% 54.1%
% of total revenue of consulting 1B A RISRIA %
services 13.6% 15.5% 15.8% 16.2% 19.2%
Consulting services AR 550,777 618,036 680,342 939,479 1,217,150
+/-% B, H % 25.3% 12.2% 10.1% 38.1% 29.6%
Community products and services & MR A 105,023 113,338 186,361 241,914 541,543
+/-% B0,/ 5 % 157.0% 7.9% 64.4% 29.8% 123.9%
Home living services R E AR 145,691 64,620 71,075 84,432 116,239
+/-% 2,/ " % 72.4% -55.6% 10.0% 18.8% 37.7%
Community space services & [& 22 A AR 75 26,264 58,816 121,486 228,654 203,726
+/-% B2,/ 8 % 62.2% 123.9% 106.6% 88.2% -10.9%
Property asset management services #EBE & B R% - 236,171 500,986 719,020 859,568
+/-% i1,/ 8 % 121% 43.5% 12.1% 43.5% 19.5%
Cultural & education services AL E BRTE - 11,085 20,165 35,738 191,675
+/-% B2,/ " % - - 81.9% 77.2% 436.3%
Community living services BEER% 276,978 484,030 900,073 1,309,758 1,912,751
+/-% i,/ 8 % 95.7% 74.8% 86.0% 455% 46.0%

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO

. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT

2019



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTFL AREBTL ARETT ARETT ARETR
OPERATING DATA Eegn
Property services LES RS
Total nos of contracts SR 637 809 1,035 1,236 1,454
+/- B0,/ 5 - 172 226 201 218
+-% o/ m % - 27.0% 27.9% 19.4% 17.6%
Reserved GFAs (m sq m.) REER(BEBLAK) 89.1 119.4 150.0 192.1 233.2
+/- i,/ m - 303 306 421 411
+-% B/ md % - 34.0% 25.6% 28.1% 21.4%
Managed GFAs (m sq m.) HEEE(BBTANK) 82.8 105.2 137.8 170.4 212.4
+/- #m/ md 16.9 224 325 326 42.0
+/-% #m/md % 25.6% 27.1% 30.9% 23.7% 24.6%
Terminated GFAs (m sq m.) BHEB(BEFEFXK) 2.4 2.0 49 1.4 8.4
+-% M,/ % 14.3% -16.7% 145% 132.7% -26.3%
% of managed GFAs in the year HEFTEEER % 2.9% 1.9% 4.6% 6.7% 4.0%
Avg property service fee FIMEREE
(RMB/mth/sq m.) (AR%® 88
B¥HXK) 3.06 3.08 3N 3.15 3.15
+/-% 2,/ 5 % 4.1% 0.7% 0.97% 1.3% 0%

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B REESHIERE

FINANCIAL POSITION B # AR R

As at 31 December
®12A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’'000
Mzt ARETT ARKTRT ARKETRT ARKTT ARMTR

Current assets mBEE 1,376,874 2,853,076 2,936,359 3,838,216 5,204,290
Including: 85
Cash & cash equivalents B4 NIREHEY 835,897 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021 2,641,334
Trade & other receivables e e 419,952 546,666 789,719 1,202,201 1,841,458
Non-current assets ERBEE 265,011 469,643 1,203,425 1,505,977 3,317,147
Total assets HEE 1,641,885 3,322,719 4,139,784 5,344,193 8,521,437
Current liabilities RBBE 1,472,265 1,554,520 2,138,300 2,922,426 4,149,275
Including: BE:
Bank loans RITER 180,000 - - 950 46,822
Lease liabilities HEEE - - - - 148,832
Non-current liabilities EREAE 20,743 22,463 9,766 17,004 1,418,113
Including: BE:
Bank loans RITET - - - — 435,992
Lease liabilities HEaE - - - - 833,395
Total liabilities FS =R 1,493,008 1,576,983 2,148,066 2,939,430 5,567,388
Net assets FEE 148,877 1,745,736 1,991,718 2,404,763 2,954,049
Financial ratios Mgt =
Current ratio MBI X 0.94x 1.84x 1.37x 1.31x 1.25x
Quick ratio FRENH & 0.93x 1.83x 1.31x 1.22x 1.17x
Net gearing ratio FEEAER 0] Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash
FHE FHe FHE FHE FHE

Net cash per share FREES 2 - 0.79 0.66 0.78 0.42
Rates of return [B] 3R =&
Dividend per share (HK$), FiEERRE(ET)

after listing 3) - 0.04 0.06 0.075 0.075
Return on net equity Py ey I B (&) 132.8% 16.4% 19.5% 20.1% 16.2%
Return on total assets BEER K (5) 12.0% 8.6% 9.4% 9.0% 5.6%

14 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B BEESHERE

Notes:

Net gearing ratio is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans and
lease liabilities, and then divided by net assets

Net cash per share is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans and
lease liabilities, then divided by total number of shares in issuance at the date of 31
December 2019

This is based on total number of shares issued as at the date of 31 December 2019:
2,789,484,525 shares

Return on net equity is calculated as net profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company divided by net assets

Return on total assets is calculated as profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company divided by total assets

FEERBXRFEHNARURSRESSEDRE
RITERRAEEE  AERIEFEE
ERFRENAEHAENRERBLSEYRE
RITERRHEEE - ABBRIARZE20195F12 A 31
HE#ITEE

ERENEZ2019F12A31 HEHITWARE:
2,789,484,525 %

P EREET E R R AR AR SRR SRR
TR A FEE

BEERREAE T ERAR R &R G E T
BABERE

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B REESHIERE

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW MEBERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000
ARBETT AR®TT AR®TT ARBTT AR¥TR

Net cash generated from RERBMRG

operating activities WEFE 510,822 393,661 528,574 656,232 919,439
Net cash generated from/(usedin) & &5,/ (FTH)

investing activities BeFa 131,660 (146,864)  (749,803) (199,082  (601,689)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FA),/

financing activities SR e 35 (243,950) 1,056,525 (71,018) (119,907) 152,501

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and B4 RIHSZEEY)

cash equivalents IR OR) 398,532 1,303,322 (292,247) 337,243 470,251
Cash & cash equivalents at the FHORERKAS

beginning of the year £EY 437,419 835897 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREB) &

changes (54) 42,473 (52,978) 6,311 (8,938)
Cash & cash equivalents EREER

at the end of the year REZEEY 835,897 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021 2,641,334

16 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Awards and Honors

RIERRE

2019 China Leading Property Management Company
in Terms of Customer Satisfaction

2019 HEI BB R RRBEERLLE

REL
‘% c:nrmcul:

20194@#!&!%65»_!

2019 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China

)
+
o

(MO BT 201 PABERA AT RSO,
“ SR AT 2] "
SR 2019 IR R G HRRRNE SR

@

2019 China Leading Property Management Company
in Terms of Service Quality

2019 HEIERB BB EREELDE

CBITII’ICAT! %
—ee—

2019=PEM!H%E'R¢!

‘ 2019 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China

TARGRR. T T 2019

“ SRR AT AL ] ‘
ST 2019 < AL S F SRR B ‘
|

5 &

2019 China High-end Property Service Leading

Company

China Top 100 Property Management Companis.

i termm of srvice qualiy.

2019 FEI B IR ERBAELE

v .

LEI(TI"LATE W

201941124”!!!%5'}!&!!

2019 TOP100 Property Management Companics in China
TR WHNR.

RS R T 2019
“ BRI R AT 2]
ARAE 2019 (LR LIS SE

China Top 100 Property Management Companies

2019 China TOP10 Property Management Company
in Terms of Growth Potential
2019 PRI RIS B REER KR TOP10

ﬁ A3
<0 -

(_!ITIIICATI
2019*m&im9§§§n~_!

2019 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China
AR MHRR.

TR, T 209

* BRI ST 2] "
R 2019 PRI SR E K KHE TOP1O

China Top 100 Property Management Companics.

3
S

2019 China Leading Property Management Company
in Terms of Social Responsibility

2019 FEMERBFEHEEAREE

[

CIITI'ICA‘I‘E

zow*ﬁhﬂﬂ%ﬁiﬂﬁ!!&

2019 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China
|! o e o i ity i!

2019 China TOP10 Property Management Company

in Terms of Business Size

S WBRR.
TARBISE. T 2019 IR LS TISHE HORSRR.

“ IR SR
FEK 2019 PRI R 2 RES R

China Top 100 Property Management Campanis.

@

2019 P EIY ¥R BB b ¥R R ETOP10

¥ e =

2019+ [1 % lk iR % & 58k

2019 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China

. WA
TRMEEIR. TR T 2019 IR NS (TN

“ SRR IR AR 2R
SR 2019 1R NF G RA R TOP10
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o
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

At the time of joint prevention and control of the COVID-19, looking
back to the consolidated history of the annual results of the Company
for 2019, we are more willing to re-evaluate the order of the intrinsic
values of the industry from the perspective of source and essence.

At the outbreak of the epidemic, in order to defense against the
epidemic, numerous municipal governments successively launched
response plans to address the major public health emergency and
mobilized various service resources with medical resources as pioneer.
As a property service provider stationed at the gate of home life,
leveraging our existing services, we took initiative to prevent and
control the epidemic. Supported by the synergic effect of the
communities and the resources of the government, we made fruitful
achievements and received high recognition to the industry from
property owners, media, the society, etc. With the adoption of a
package of incentive measures by the government subsequently, the
industry has been added value at a tremendous speed and to a large
extent, which has in turn inspired the whole industry. This circumstance
during such emergency period has highlighted the value of the
industry in the social public service field.

Those who are good at fighting are good at capturing opportunities in
the tough times. The excellent service performance of the Company
during this public health emergency, coupled with its development
momentum in 2019, enabled the Company to perform steady in an
unscheduled service. In 2019, the Company recorded revenue of
RMB8,581.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 27.9%.
Revenue from the property services was RMB5,452.0 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 22.2%; revenue from the
community living services was RMB1,912.8 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 46.0%; revenue from the consulting services was
RMB1,217.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 29.6%. Our
development momentum has helped increase our morale, not only our
senior management but also our frontline staff held fast to their
positions during the Chinese New Year Holidays. After the outbreak of
the epidemic, all of our staff while still on leave, returned to work and
were well prepared to meet the dual requirements of property owners
and the government.

Under the vision of the happy life service provider, “Befriend and Help
Each Other” is the due norm of a happy life. In 2019, the community
volunteer organization “Happiness Community” sponsored and
established by us covered 1,046 projects under management
nationwide, recruited more than 110,000 volunteering property owners
and organized over 15,000 volunteer activities. We improved our
services by serving people, and incited feelings by sharing with people.
Faced with the COVID-19, the “"Happiness Community” cooperated
with us in defending against the epidemic effectively, making us a
striking focus among all.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

To prevent and control the epidemic in communities, many property
owners were grounded at home for over one month. Another more
challenge we faced was how to deliver living supplies safely and timely.
As the Company has steadily developed our “Fresh Green Orange”
plan and cooperated with CenturyMart in 2019, our services were
mutely became “internet celebrity” level services during the epidemic,
which benefited from the function of the frontline warehouses within
the community. In addition to the “Orange Community”, a community
served by the “Fresh Green Orange” plan, we have also updated our
service app — "Greentown Living APP". As of 31 December 2019, the
number of registered users reached 1,000,000, representing an
increase of 30.8% compared with that of the corresponding period in
the last year; the number of online payments of living expenses
reached 470,000, representing an increase of 100% compared with that
of the corresponding period in the last year; the number of door-
openings via Bluetooth reached 3,870,000, representing an increase by
11 times over that of the corresponding period in the last year; the
number of temporary online payments reached 1,790,000, representing
an increase of 10 times over that of to the corresponding period in the
last year. The growth in the rate of usage of technological platforms by
property owners provided the foundation for our precise service
demand algorithm.

When the epidemic prevention and control shifted from communities
to workplaces, our technical staff of the commercial office building
service team worked overtime to develop the epidemic service
platform for communities, which was described by the media as an
"artifact for work resumption” and used in the work resumption and
epidemic prevention of many industrial (creative) parks, commercial
office buildings, and government administrative service centers in
Hangzhou. The launch of the customized technology product
demonstrated the value of the cloud service system released by the
Company for commercial office buildings in 2019. It also helped us in
expanding new business forms such as Guangzhou Nansha
International Cruise Home Port (&) 7 BB ##m &%) and the Enlight
(Yangzhou) China Film World (#1345 NESZA84). As of 31 December
2019, the Company’s managed GFA and reserved GFA recorded a new
high, reaching 212.4 million square meters and 233.2 million square
meters, respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Services connected with technology make life safer and more
convenient. In 2019, we focused on strengthening scientific and
technical cooperation and applications in smart communities and
actively participated in the construction of future communities in
Zhejiang Province, which included working with SenseTime to study
smart community solutions based on graphic recognition, and signing
a cooperation agreement with Alibaba Cloud to explore the “platform
+ steward” business model; we also reached a strategic cooperation
with Hikvision to set up a joint laboratory for internet of things to plan
and build products and services such as smart fire protection and smart
security systems jointly, integrating with community scene services
closely.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

After the eventful year of 2019, we have steadily taken another big step
forward and are standing at the starting point of a new track.
Confronted with the epidemic windstorm while forging ahead, we see
a situation full of both challenges and opportunities. We are faced with
a new battle amidst the recovery of the service industry, and in turn,
our management need to lead all of our staff to prepare and take
action to understand the situation, apply technological means, improve
our servicing ability, and promote our business development, so as to
achieve our shared growth. Over the past few years, as the famous
saying goes — listen to the spring thunder in silence, we have been
determined to deploy our businesses in education, healthcare, new
retails, etc. in our strategic cycle.

There may be numerous trials and hardship ahead. In despite of this,
we must act aggressively and adventurously with prudence kept in
mind and strive to seek breakthroughs in our industry while flexibly
avoiding risks and proactively seizing market share, so as to create a
brighter future for service providers. We are not only a partner in the
service undertaking, but also part of the service industry with a
common destiny. In facing over 300 brand new days ahead in the
service-oriented working scenario, we will, as the public would expect,
be committed to moving forward steadily in the same direction and on
the same road without losing our efforts and corporate culture.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E AN AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide. In the
“2019 China Property Service Top 100 Enterprises Research Results
Conference” organized by China Index Academy (a professional
independent third-party Real Estate Research Organization in China),
we maintain the first place of “China’s top 100 leading enterprises in
terms of Property Service Satisfaction”, which is the praise of our
services, and is the solid foundation of the continuous expansion of our
management scale and sustained growth of financial performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group achieved:

Revenue

Revenue was RMB8,581.9 million. Compared with that of the year of
2018, which was RMB6,709.9 million, the growth rate on year-on-year
basis reached 27.9%.

The Group's revenue comes from three major businesses: (i) property
services, (i) community living services, and (iii) consulting services.
During the year, (i) the revenue from the property services was still the
Group's largest source of revenue and profit, which reached
RMBS5,452.0 million, accounting for 63.5% of the Group's revenue.
Compared with RMB4,460.7 million in the year of 2018, there was a
year-on-year growth of 22.2%; (i) community living services revenue
reached RMB1,912.8 million, accounting for 22.3% of the Group's
revenue. Compared with RMB1,309.8 million in the year of 2018, there
was a year-on-year growth of 46.0%,; (iii) the revenue of consulting
services amounted to RMB1,217.2 million, which accounting for 14.2%
of the Group's revenue. There was a year-on-year growth of 29.6%
compared with RMB939.5 million of the year of 2018.
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B E AN o7

2019 2018
% of % of
the total the total
RMB’000 revenue RMB'000 revenue Y%
ARBTT WBEA% AR®ETT  HEKA% Al £t %
Property services Y3 R 7%
Property services LIES s 5,452,031 63.5% 4,460,669 66.5% 22.2%
5,452,031 63.5% 4,460,669 66.5% 22.2%
Community living services EER®
Community products & B [ 2= cm MRS
services 541,543 6.3% 241,914 3.6% 123.9%
Home living services BERETE RS 116,239 1.4% 84,432 1.3% 37.7%
Community space services & = AR 7% 203,726 2.4% 228,654 34% -10.9%
Property asset MEEBEERRS
management services 859,568 10.0% 719,020 10.7% 19.5%
Cultural & education XALHE R
services 191,675 2.2% 35,738 0.5% 436.3%
1,912,751 22.3% 1,309,758 19.5% 46.0%
Consulting services 4 B
Property under EEMERY
construction services 983,283 11.5% 787,735 1.7% 24.8%
Management consulting BB ARS
services 233,867 2.7% 151,744 2.3% 54.1%
1,217,150 14.2% 939,479 14.0% 29.6%
8,581,932 100.0% 6,709,906 100.0% 27.9%
Cost of sales SHERAK

FRBEERARNBARKIGBISAE L &
2018 F 2 FE AR5 5123 B ETIER 27.6%
HE 7N EE B UL A I R R 27 9% B AR T — B o 3%
AT EZ RN EBRBIEAFTE - BS54
BRUEW T ASER B ANE GG #E—
HEAT RS A8 B R B E RS R
BRETHESHERFERNRE -

During the year, the cost of sales was RMB7,034.8 million, which was an
increase of 27.6% compared with that of RMB5,512.3 million in the year
of 2018 and it was basically in line with the Group's revenue growth
rate being 27.9%. This was mainly due to the scale expansion of
business. We will continue to improve and promote the Group's cost
control measures while expanding the coverage and increasing the
efficiency of automated and intelligent devices in providing services.
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Gross profit margin

—  Gross profit has reached RMB1,547.1 million, a growth of 29.2%
compared with RMB1,197.7 million in 2018. Gross profit margin
was 18.0%, increased by 0.2 percentage points compared with
the year of 2018.

—  Gross profit margin for property service was 11.4%, as same as
that in 2018. Despite the intensified competition in the property
services market and the increasing labor costs, the Group has
achieved continuous expansion in management scale and steady
improvement in operating efficiency by leveraging on high-
quality services and strong capabilities in market expansion.

—  Gross profit margin for community living services was 27.1%, a
slightly increase as compared to 25.5% in 2018. Our community
living services continued to focus on core business operation
capacity establishment, and improvement in gross profit margin
was achieved in terms of community products and services,
community space services, and cultural & education services
during the year.

—  Gross profit margin for consulting service was 33.6%, slightly
lower than 38.0% in 2018 by 4.4 percentage points. The main
reason was that gross profit margin from management consulting
services decreased.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses was RMB151.2 million, an increase of
154.5% compared with RMB59.4 million in 2018. The increase was
primarily due to the increase in number of sales staff and venue rental
costs (including expenses relating to short-term leases and
depreciation of right-of-use assets) as a result of the expansion of new
retail, education and property asset management services of the
Group, and the increased expenses after acquisition of subsidiaries in
education and other services.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

%%U$
FEREAREE15471HEB T 820184F
2FEARE11977E & T R29.2% °
FEREE18.0%  W2018F2FHEMNT
0218 E D8 -

— WERBEMNEXRI4% K2018F 2
FEARFT HAMERBTIEHRF B
%“%515” ANIRRAFERA - BAEE

amuuéiﬁﬁﬁﬁi%fﬂéﬁﬁbmmiﬁ%@
j] BEREERENZERRER BE&K
KBTS RA -

— EERRBENER27.1% B2018F2
FMW25.5%0 A LT - BERREIFHE
RERBRLERBRENNER  FRER
EmKRE - BRZ=MRBINIHRE
RIBEN KBS

— BHREEFEE33.6% LL2018F 2
FH3BO0% TR TA4AEEDZ - TEZ
AR EEZ RSN E TR -

HEREHEMEX
HERLHEMIAARBISI2ZEE L &
2018F2FARMSATE TR 1545% °
BRENTZRAENAEEHNTE MEELE
EERGEFNRE  HEABURSHHES
KA (BEAERBHERFERESENEN
FX)MIGIN URARESEBAFETKE
BB A R ETAS SR A B R AN o



Management Discussion and Analysis

B E AN o7

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses were RMB771.0 million, an
increase of 29.1% compared with RMB597.3 million in 2018. This
growth rate was slightly higher than the revenue growth rate of 27.9%
for the year, but represents a decline of 14.5 percentage points from
43.6% over the year of 2018. In terms of cost and expenditure, the
Group continued to strengthen control and adopted effective internal
control measures. In addition, in 2019, the Group's equity-settled
share-based payment expenses were RMB62.8 million, an increase of
RMB36.4 million compared with the year of 2018. After excluding
equity-settled share-based payment expenses, our administrative
expenses increased by 24.0%, which was lower than the increase in
revenue of the Group. Since 2017, the Group continued to establish a
data-driven, intelligent and efficient peer-to-peer management system
which provides platform services and automatic supervision in order to
realize the "penetration” of vertical business and the “connection” of
horizontal business through its sharing centre with an aim to achieve
the objectives of efficient management and convenient services. The
effect of this strategy is becoming more visible.

Profit from operations

Profit from operations was RMB643.8 million, a growth of 24.7%
compared with RMB516.2 million for the year of 2018; the adjusted
profit from operations (excluding equity-settled share-based payment
expenses) was RMB706.6 million, an increase of 30.2% compared with
the year of 2018 (excluding equity-settled share-based payment
expenses).

Operating profit margin was 7.5%, a decrease of 0.2 percentage point
compared to 7.7% in 2018; the adjusted operating profit margin
(excluding equity-settled share-based payment expenses) was 8.2%, an
increase of 0.1 percentage point compared to 8.1% in 2018.
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Net finance (costs)/income

The net finance costs during the year was RMB0.8 million, decreasing
by 104.1% compared with the net income of RMB18.1 million in the
year of 2018. This was mainly due to the combined impacts of
increased interest income on bank deposits, increased interest
expense on new bank loans and the addition of finance costs on lease
liabilities as a result of the initial application of new lease standards.

& (RA&), WA FE

FR BERANFEAARBISHEE L &
018F2FFWAARBISIEE THRIET
104.1% ° F Z 2 R IRITF SRE AW F B U A
BN - FLIRITEREENFE S HE A K&
VIR ERFHEERESFRICHAEAERN
EERAMERITE -

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB’000 Y/N%
ARBT T ARBTFT AL %

Interest income on listed debt FHEBIAEFBUA
instruments 5,358 3,886 37.9%
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T1F 7 F 2 U A 25,739 14,270 80.4%
Interest expense on bank loans RITEFFERAX (11,366) (23) >100.0%
Interest expense on lease liabilities & & &2 H (38,300) - N/A
NEA
Less: interest expense capitalised @i : AL EEREEN 17,819 - N/A
into assets under FEXZH TEMA

construction

Net finance (costs)/income BE (R A), WA F 58 (750) 18,133 -104.1%

Share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures

In 2019, losses of associates amounted to RMB4.9 million, an decrease
of RMB17.9 million compared to the losses of RMB22.8 million in the
year of 2018. This was mainly because the operations of the losses of
the associates were back on track during the year with a gradual
decrease in losses.

The share of profit of joint ventures amounted to RMB2.3 million, a
year-on-year increase of RMBO0.4 million compared with the profit of
RMB1.9 million in the year of 2018. This was mainly because the further
increase in profits of some joint ventures.

Income Tax

The income tax for the year was RMB170.9 million, increasing by 4.7%
from RMB163.3 million during the year of 2018. The effective income
tax rate increased 0.6 percentage points from 26.0% in 2018 to 26.6%,
which was mainly due to the fact that income tax rate on the equity
transfer income from the disposal of one associate in 2018 was lower
than the overall tax rate of the Group, which lowered the overall tax
rate in 2018.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British

Virgin Islands ("BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.
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The income tax rate applicable to Group entities incorporated in Hong
Kong for the income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax is 16.5%. A two-
tiered profits tax rates regime was introduced in 2018 whereby the first
HKD2 million in assessable profits earned by a company will be taxed
at half of the current tax rate (8.25%) while the remaining profits will
continue to be taxed at 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made as the Group did not earn any income subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities incorporated in
Australia for the income subject to Income Tax Assessment Act 1997
during the reporting period is 30%.

Individual companies within the Group in the PRC are generally subject
to Corporate Income Tax at 25% on taxable income determined
according to the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC
unless otherwise specified.

For the Group's subsidiary, Hangzhou Greentown Vocational Training
School (LN AR R Z5551224R) is recognised as a small profit enterprise
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021. The portion of annual
taxable income amount, which does not exceed RMB1 million, shall be
computed at a discounted rate of 25% as taxable income amount, and
be subject to enterprise income tax at 20%. And the portion of annual
taxable income, which exceeds RMB1 million but does not exceed
RMB3 million, shall be computed at a discounted rate of 50% as
taxable income amount, and be subject to enterprise income tax at
20%.

Pursuant to Chapter 28 of the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax, enterprises are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% after the recognition of high and new technology
enterprise. The Group's subsidiary, Hangzhou Greentown Information
and Technology Company Limited (#1435 {5 S #: i B R A &) has
obtained a high and new technology enterprise certification in 2018
and is entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2018 to
2020.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year was RMB472.4 million with an increase of 1.4%
compared with RMB465.7 million during the year of 2018; the adjusted
profit (excluding equity-settled share-based payment expenses and
after tax impact) for the year was RMB519.5 million, representing an
increase of 7.0% compared with the year of 2018 (excluding equity-
settled share-based payment expenses and after tax impact).
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Net profit margin for the year was 5.5%, a decrease of 1.4 percentage
points compared with 6.9% in 2018. Adjusted net profit margin for the
year (excluding equity-settled share-based payment expenses and
after tax impact) was 6.1%, which decreased 1.1 percentage points
from 7.2% (excluding equity-settled share-based payment expenses
and after tax impact) in the year of 2018.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group maintained a good financial condition during the year. The
current assets for the year was RMB5,204.3 million, increasing by 35.6%
compared to RMB3,838.2 million in 2018. The Group's cash and cash
equivalents amounted to RMB2,641.3 million in 2019, increasing year-
on-year by 21.2% compared with RMB2,180.0 million in 2018. Net cash
generated from operating activities remained a stable upward trend,
amounting to RMB919.4 million during the year, grew year-on-year by
40.1% from RMB656.2 million in 2018. Net cash used in investing
activities amounted to RMB6&01.7 million, up by 202.2% compared with
2018. Net cash generated from financing activities was RMB152.5
million, up 227.2% from 2018, which was mainly due to an increase of
RMB371.7 million in bank loans.

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 29
March 2019, 11 April 2019, 21 June 2019 and 5 July 2019. On 21 June
2019, Greentown Education Holding Group Co. Ltd ("Greentown
Education”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the
borrower and the Group and a subsidiary of the Group, as the
guarantors entered into a facility agreement with Standard Chartered
Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, as the lender in relation to a loan facility in
the principal amount of USD49.0 million with a term of three years (the
“Loan”). The Loan was used to fund the purchase price of the
acquisition of 7,057 shares of Montessori Academy Group Holdings Pty
Ltd. (the "MAG"), representing approximately 56% of the issued share
capital of the Target Company at the time of the acquisition by
Greentown Education (the “Acquisition”), pursuant to the share
purchase agreement dated 29 March 2019. In addition, the subsidiary
acquired during the year previously made a loan from banks with a
total amount of AUD28.0 million for the purpose of supplementing the
working capital. The total amount of these two loans was
approximately RMB477.8 million.

The debt ratio (total liabilities/total assets) of the Group was 65.3%, an
increase of 10.3 percentage points compared with 55.0% at the end of
2018. This was mainly due to the increase in bank loans during the year
and the simultaneous increase in the Group's assets and liabilities as a
result of the application of the new lease standards.
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Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

As at 31 December 2019, the value of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounted to RMB1,271.5 million, which
increased by 241.9% from RMB371.9 million as at 31 December 2018.
The increase was primarily attributable to the recognition of an
increase in right-of-use assets of RMB689.9 million under the new lease
standards. The right-of-use assets were mainly used in the Group's new
retail, cultural and education and property assets management services
businesses. Excluding the changes resulting from the new lease
standards, the value of property, plant and equipment amounted to
RMB581.7 million, representing an increase of 56.4%, mainly due to the
increase in the leasehold improvements as a result of the new
acquisition of MAG during the year and the increase in the leasehold
improvements of the newly opened education park, both of which
were normal operational expenses required.

Intangible assets

As at 31 December 2019, intangible assets amounted to RMB327.0
million, representing an increase of 339.5% compared with RMB74.4
million as at 31 December 2018, which was due to the consolidated
impact after the Acquisition by the Group, resulting in the additional
evaluation value of the new MAG brand.

Trade and other receivables

As at 31 December 2019, current trade and other receivables
amounted to RMB1,841.5 million, increasing by 53.2%, from
RMB1,202.2 million as at 31 December 2018. Among them, the largest
proportion of current trade receivables amounted to RMB1,034.6
million, an increase of 55.4% from RMB665.7 million as at 31 December
2018, which was higher than the total revenue growth rate of 27.9%.
This was mainly due to the impact of the macro environment and the
increase in trade receivables as a result from the slowdown in collection
from developer subsidies and the increase in community service
business scale affected by the macro environment.

Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2019, current trade and other payables amounted
to RMB2,626.8 million, increasing by 38.8% from RMB1,892.2 million as
at 31 December 2018. This was mainly because the procurement
volume grew with income gains; meanwhile, the payment of
procurement funds was further appropriately controlled due to the
launch of the Procurement Sharing Funds Collection system.
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Lease liabilities HERE

During the year, the increase in lease liabilities was recognized in  F R« RIEFHHELERERENHEERE  —
accordance with the new lease standards. Lease liabilities payable due FHNELXNHWEEAEAEARKI1488FE T
within one year, which were included in current liabilities, were s ARBEE —FULEZNNBEEES
RMB148.8 million, while lease liabilities payable due after one year, ARM¥83R4FETHARPHERE -
which were included in long-term lease liabilities, were RMB833.4

million.

Property Services — accounting for 63.5% of total revenue, ¥JE R — HEUW A 63.5% ' HEEF|
and 40.1% of total gross profit 40.1%

Property services are the Group's largest revenue and margin source. ¥ 2RISR A 2 £ E ) Z AW AT ERN R
The Group has been mainly adopting the overall rationing system for —EHMNUK @ £EF EBHEBBHORBWEH
service charging. Based on our management experience and cost I ' ERBKFIBE20ZFREIAMNEELERM
control capability over the past 20 years, property services provide us  FXANIEHIGE N - MEREIHE AR IS RKEBE
with stable revenue and profit, as well as good reputation, and is the  HJUg A ~ FIE KR FEDE - IR EBEEEE
cornerstone of the Group's implementation of its living services  IRISBIREEIE A ETS - R 2019F 2 4F ¢
strategy. Throughout 2019:

— Revenue reached RMB5,452.0 million, an increase of 22.2% — IWAAARKS4520BFE T @ 820184
compared with RMB4,460.7 million in the year of 2018. As the 2FARMEL44607TEHETILR222% °
revenue base of property services continues to increase, the HEZ MRS WA RS T E A 78
growth of this segment is expected to stabilize in the future. SAARKZEERBBRIEE -

—  Gross profit reached RMB619.9 million, up 22.3% from RMB507.0 — EFAARKE6199E & T 8201845
million in 2018 compared to the year of 2018. Gross profit margin 2FARMESITOBE L EFA223% F
was 11.4% in line with that of in 2018. FIRE2018F 2 FM 11.4% 55 F ©

2019 2018
% of property % of % of property % of
service managed service managed
revenue GFA revenue GFA
(LIS HEE (=EZES EEE
BRIE WA % HE % AR U % H & %
Contracted GFA BREE
— Residential —E= 70.2 78.8 70.3 78.0
— Non-residential —¥EE=E 29.8 21.2 29.7 22.0
Total st 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
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The managed GFA reached 212.4 million square meters, an
increase of 24.6% compared with 170.4 million square meters in
2018, or net increase of 42.0 million square meters, net increased
by 28.2 million square meters compared with 184.2 million square
meters in the interim period of 2019. We not only pay attention
to the increase of management area, but also focus on the
improvement of service quality and the acquisition of more high-
quality projects. We optimize the project portfolio constantly,
improve the service experience of the property owners, but also
bring about the increase of the proportion of property service fee
and the expansion of brand effect, which brings strong internal
impetus for the continuous growth of performance.

Reserve area, as an important source of the future management
area, reached a new height during the year, at 233.2 million
square meters, an increase of 21.4% compared with 192.1 million
square meters in 2018, or a net increase of 41.1 million square
meters. This was the sixth consecutive year that the Group's
reserve area was higher than the managed GFA, greatly
increasing certainty of the Group's future stable growth.

Managed projects reached 1,454, covering 147 cities in 29
provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China.

Regional distribution: as at 31 December 2019, our managed
GFA and revenue by region were distributed as follows:

EEMEA21248 8 F H K 82018
FWI704BEF HAKIER24.6% I F
HWMN420E&EF K - L2019 F # HiA)
18428 B F A K FHEM282BEEFH
Ko FTEBTEABEENRE - BN
ERRERENRALEEEENA
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B EFARBESENER  AEENT
BIRRETRAEIHANEE S

FEHEEE FRATEEENEZERR -
FREIHS - B2B2EEF K &
2018 F 1921 BB F A RKMBHERT
214% @ SUFIEIAN 1 BEBEF K E2
EEFEEE A NFHREDESREER
HE AEBERRNEBETERERTRE
B o

HEEBERIER14548 BE 7 2E29
%  EEMMEARE - X147 @ -

B o R2019F12A31H 1L &
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2019 2018

% of % of
managed % of managed % of
GFA revenue GFA revenue
HEEEE% BB A % HEEEREYS THHA %
— Hangzhou — HuM 15.3 30.3 16.6 30.1
— Yuhang — &M 5.9 5.2 6.9 5.6
Greater Hangzhou AATM 21.2 35.5 235 357
Ningbo BF 6.6 6.9 6.9 57
Yangtze River Delta RI=AR 38.7 28.5 37.0 29.7
Bohai Economic Rim  IE3/HG & HE R 14.6 12.6 15.4 14.1
Pearl River Delta WI=ZAR 8.0 5.5 6.5 55
Others HAth 10.9 11.0 10.7 9.3
100 100 100 100

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA
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Community living services — accounting for 22.3% of our
total revenue, and 33.5% of our total gross profit
During the year, the community living service continues to grow and

has gained revenue of RMB1,912.8 million, an increase of 46.0%
compared with RMB1,309.8 million in 2018. Among them,

)

The community products and services (accounting for 28.3% of
the community living service income): in 2019, the annual revenue
reached RMB541.5 million, a year-on-year increase of 123.9%
compared with RMB241.9 million in 2018.

Home living services (accounting for 6.1% of the community living
service income): in 2019, the annual revenue reached RMB116.2
million, an increase of 37.7% compared with RMB84.4 million in
2018.

EERKE — H#BEKA22.3%  HEEF
33.5%

FR - BRRBSESERBREREE  WESK
AARBE19128F B L £2018F AR
1,309.8 A& IR 46.0% > H -

M

B @ E A RS(EE R RS KA
28.3%) 1 2019F WA B AR ¥54158
BIL RL2018F ARB24198E T
HK£123.9% °

BEXREGERE(EEERBEWA6.1%) :
2019 F WA BARE162FHE T R
2018 FARMEGLIAAETTIER37.7% °

Community space services (accounting for 10.7% of the (3) BERZEMRSE((HERREWA10.7%)
community living service income): in 2019, the annual revenue 2019 FIRARARK 2037 A& T » [k
reached RMB203.7 million, a decrease of 10.9%, compared with 2018 F AR¥E228.7 A& TLIFIK 10.9% °
RMB228.7 million in 2018.
Property asset management services (accounting for 44.9% ofthe (4) Y EEETERBE(EERERE KA
income from community living services): in 2019, the revenue 44.9%) : 2019 F W A B AR #859.6 &
reached RMB859.6 million, increasing by 19.5% compared with 20 A2018F ARKE71908 & T
RMB719.0 million in the year of 2018. R 19.5% °
Cultural and education services (accounting for 10.0% of the (5) X{t#H BE R B(HE & R S U A B
income from the community living services): in 2019, the revenue 10.0%) : 2019 F WA BARM 19178
reached RMB191.7 million, an increase of 436.3% compared with ST Ak 2018F AR 357 B E L%
RMB35.7 million in the year of 2018. £ 436.3% °
2019 2018
Revenue % of Y/Y Revenue % of
RMB’000 total % RMB’'000 total
LON R4 G4 WA Gt
ARET T % % ARBTT %
Community products & B[ E R RS
service 541,543 28.3 123.9 241,914 18.5
Home living services BFRAEERS 116,239 6.1 37.7 84,432 6.4
Community space services % 2= ] AR 75 203,726 10.7 -10.9 228,654 17.5
Property asset management ¥ & E B R
services 859,568 44.9 19.5 719,020 54.9
Cultural & education services X{t# 5 RS 191,675 10.0 436.3 35,738 2.7
Total Bt 1,912,751 100.0 46.0 1,309,758 100.0
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Community living services offer systematic product and service
solutions for all life service scenes of property owners throughout the
life cycle of real estate. They are an extension of property services and
an important part of our strategic vision of being a "happy living
service provider”. During the year, by deepening our research based
on the strategy of living services, we built a virtuous ecological circle of
discovering needs, matching resources, connecting effectively and
forming states. By adopting technology and focusing on community
scenarios, we promoted the upgrading of our products and improved
the competitive strength of our services and products.

—  Community products and services

During the year, the rapid growth of our community products and
services was primarily due to our consistently outstanding
capacity of supply of community products and the advance
strategic layout of the new retail system. Based on the daily
needs and demand for quality of property owners, while
maintaining the standard function of supplying traditional
community products (including rice, seasonal fruits, fresh food
and traditional festival-oriented products, etc.), we launched the
business model of “GreenMart” (“fresh food store + front
warehouse + community immediate delivery”) by virtue of a
property service company'’s innate advantage of having “efficient
access to customers”. Meanwhile, through strategic cooperation
with a leading local supply chain, we expanded our product
portfolio, improved our product supply chain system, and
established a high-quality living service platform closest to the
lives of property owners, which maintained and improved the
stickiness of the property owners.

— Home living services

During the year, based on the accumulated data on our platform,
we improved the property owner profile identification system,
which was fully applied to the home service platform called “Four
Seasons Housekeeping”, a high-quality living platform that
provides comprehensive, one-stop solutions on various matters
in the lives of property owners, to provide effective data support
for our business development and achieve a steady improvement
in the performance of our home living services. For the next step,
we will fully integrate the various home living service demand
data within the Group, including high-end elderly care,
housekeeping, cleaning, air conditioning repair and maintenance,
and furnishing services to conduct effective data analysis on
demand, integrate high-quality service resources, and provide
property owners with more refined and convenient living services
based on their demand on living services.
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Community space services

During the year, the failure to renew an advertising business
contract by a subsidiary of the Group affected the growth of the
revenue from community space services. We believe that such
advertising business contract is not one of the core services of
the community space services and cannot represent the growth
trend of the community space services. However, taking into
account the current growth bottlenecks encountered by
traditional advertising investment and operation business in the
community space services, that is, affected by the marketing
costs of upstream companies and the impact of new media
advertising placement, the offline advertising business has been
shrinking. This, coupled with the impact of the novel coronavirus
epidemic in 2020, means that the Group's advertising business
development in brand operations and sales planning activities
will also be limited to a certain extent, and the growth rate of the
community space services business in the next year will be
affected. However, we will continue to increase efforts in the
integration of community space resources, enrich the product
content of community space services, and enhance the
bargaining advantage. In the meantime, we intended to develop
variable advertising forms such as pop-up shops that take
communities as basic support and community businesses as
templates to provide property owners with products and services
that fully meet their daily needs, increase the conversion rate of
advertising in the community space, and continue to promote the
upgrade and transformation of our community space service
products.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2019

B &z RS
FER KENBARIN —ESEBKER
REBHEHEREEBRBRALRE
PR - ﬁfFﬁWL\%ﬁtriﬁﬁ%AﬂiF%
E’\IIZ ERIRB RO EB 2 —
ERERERZE Fﬁﬁﬁi’%ﬁ’]iﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘ 1E|
i ZEI B AERZEERBE T ES
BERERNELSXKEBERMAE X
EHrEMISEHEERTEARITERE
BERMEE - T BEERMERTEH
fER o HBRR2020F T ERETE &
Fﬁﬁ?iﬁ“&“iﬁ%iﬂiﬁﬁtﬁﬁgm
¥BEROEZI —ERERSE
FREREZEMERE XL ﬁﬂ#ﬁﬁﬁ
Zo2R8 BMBEEMNARERZEME
/ﬁ%m j] =’ EEEHEFEEJHE?%E’JEDD
BRAZEEY  ERTEBARRE
AR BEKEE - LR EEAERARET
EEREREERANME  REFIR
HREZEEEFTKNERERY  ReE
@SB Ma (bR - W BB H M
H @ = RS E R FARER o



Management Discussion and Analysis

B E AN o7

Property asset management services

Affected by the conditions and related policies in the real estate
industry in 2019, the popularity of second-hand housing
purchases continued to decline steadily. Property agency income
remained the largest source of income of this segment. During
the year, by implementing the strategy of the National
Greentown Rental and Sales Centre, and establishing
cooperation with the third parties, such as Lianjia.com, we
continued to promote the second-hand housing business while
focusing on the first-hand housing and agency services for the
sale of remaining units, which has achieved initial success.
Although the growth in revenue for property agency segment has
slowed down, its gross profit margin has increased by
approximately 4.4 percentage points compared with the year of
2018. For other asset management services (e.g. parking space
business), we also continuously improved our professional
operation capabilities and expanded new services models, such
as parking lot operations. In the future, we will continue to focus
on the management and operation services for high-quality
property assets in Tiers 1 and 2 cities to develop a stable business
operation model.

Cultural and education services

During the year, the revenue and gross profit margin of this
segment improved significantly, which was due to the combined
impacts of the following factors: on the one hand, MAG, a
company incorporated in Australia, became our subsidiary after
the completion of the Acquisition. The business growth of MAG
is in line with expectations after the Acquisition and has made
positive contribution to the increase in revenue and profit of the
education segment. On the other hand, we focused on the
development of the early childhood education brand of
“Wonderful Garden”, the core competitiveness of which was
improved by implementing our strategy “standardized
institutional setup, scientific education system, diversified
curriculum design and personalized care service” after
communication and cooperation with outstanding onshore and
offshore early childhood education service institutions. After the
business ramp-up period, its average occupancy rate increased
significantly compared with the year of 2018. For the next step, in
addition to the introduction of MAG's advanced education
concept and empowerment of its high-quality curriculum system
on our self-operated early childhood education business, we will
try to explore the new model in the cultural and education
business that offers professional teachers and curriculum systems
by relying on the venue and hardware resources of the client.
Taking into account of the impact and duration of the novel
coronavirus epidemic, the short-term business development of
this segment in 2020 will be affected to a certain extent.
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Consulting services — accounting for 14.2% of the total
revenue, 26.4% of the total gross profit

During the year, we continued to focus on the full life cycle of real
estate, deeply analyzed our clients’ needs, and continuously improved
the organic growth and strengthened core competitive advantages of
our consulting services through methods such as the integration of
quality resources, construction of a standardized system and business
innovation, for the whole year of 2019:

— The income reached RMB1,217.2 million, an increase rate of
29.6% compared with the year of 2018, and compared with the
growth rate of 30.0% in mid-year of 2019, the growth rate is
basically flat.

—  Our gross profit increased by 14.4% to RMB408.6 million from
RMB357.2 million in the year of 2018. Our gross profit margin
decreased slightly to 33.6% from 38.0% in the year of 2018. This
was mainly due to the impact of gross profit margin from the
decrease in management consulting services, but the overall
gross profit margin from consulting services remained at a high
level.

BHRE — EHHRKWA14.2% 0 hEER
26.4%

FR - RMEEEEEEREEwER  TF
ADMBEETRNBERT - HIRFAR KIEA
HITTENEITER - BBREEERES  12E
BRESMEBHNEFN - FERCEBR
BzOBEN  R2019F2F ¢

— WAEARK12172BETT - E20184F
2 EMEIE R 29.6%  FHE R 20194F &
HI30.0% H I R R SR EAREF o

— EMAARBEA86HE T E20184
MARM3S7 2B E AL EF14.4% °
E ) EH2018F & F38.0%0 T~ &=
33.6%  FERIIEEEAREERNE
TROFE  BEEBEARSENEREK
ARFREAKF

2019 2018
Revenue % of Y/Y Revenue % of
RMB’000 total % RMB’000 total
WA IR 5 F 3 ON (EECE
ARET T % % AERBFIT %
Project under construction TR SRS
services 983,283 80.8 24.8 787,735 83.8
Management consulting services & 12 & 78 R 7% 233,867 19.2 54.1 151,744 16.2
Total et 1,217,150 100.0 29.6 939,479 100.0

— Inface of the changes in the consulting service market conditions,
we actively responded to the changes and continuously
implemented service innovation. During the year, we focused on
the commercial and office scene, and launched a commercial and
office properties cloud sharing service system supported by the
“operation system + service system + standard system” to
facilitate the development of industry services. Relying on the
property projects and management resources, we tried to
explore the use of real estate consultation services to fully meet
customer service needs. We also continuously enhanced the core
competitiveness of the “Green Alliance”, deepened the output
of the management system and the service system, and
continuously promoted the development of our consulting
services by virtue of the advantage of the synergy between the
property services and community living services of the Group.
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Property under construction services

Our revenue reached RMB983.3 million, an increase of 24.8%
compared with the year of 2018, basically in line with the 27.6%
increase in the mid of 2019. Based on the analysis of customer
needs, we upgraded the traditional field services to better life
experience services. With the goal of achieving “better life”, we
explored and provided courses for different levels, different
systems, and different needs, to improve the professional
capabilities of service personnel in various aspects, and create a
team of "better life designers”. In the meantime, we built a
commercial and office properties brand of “Greentown Cloud
Sharing” via service and product segments, which facilitated
sales services for non-residential properties and promoted the
steady business development of this segment.

Management consulting services

Our revenue reached RMB233.9 million, an increase of 54.1%
compared with the year of 2018, which is significantly higher than
the 42.0% increase in the mid of 2019. This was due to the
combined impacts of the followings: on the one hand, we relied
on the client resources from property consulting projects to
deeply develop and provide real estate consulting services,
enhancing the customer value. On the other hand, the “"Green
Alliance” services, by giving full play to its leading quality
advantage in the property service market, provided smart
community living services, training and quality certification
services, which further enhanced its core competitiveness. Such
long-term, diversified, superimposed and sustainable
cooperation model has been recognized by many customers, and
the number of service output targets has further increased.
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B R EEFARY - BIR
EFEEMNEM. Z—HMH [ 488 ]
RIGFE D B IBIEYERB T B ELHE
EELED  EENEEEERSEH
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2019 2018

Average Average

No. of revenue/ No. of revenue/

projects Y/Y project  projects Y/IY project

year end % RMB'000  year end %  RMB'000

13 13

HEEH Bt WA EE THH Rt WA TER

3 % ARMFR (EHFR % NRBFT
Project under construction  EEYIE RS

services 597 36.3 1,647 438 47.5 1,798
Management consulting B RT

services 599 47.2 390 407 49.6 373
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Dividend distribution

At the Board meeting held on 31 March 2020, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.075 per
ordinary share of the Company, subject to approval by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM") to be held on 19
June 2020. The final dividend will be paid on or before 15 July 2020.

The Board is of the view that the Group has generated considerable
cash from its remarkable operating performance in the year, and gave
effect to the Group's firm belief in sharing the positive return from the
Group's growth with its shareholders through dividend distribution.
The Board has fully taken account of the impact of the novel
coronavirus epidemic on the Group's operations. After the dividend
payment, the Group continues to keep a large amount of cash, which
is sufficient for normal operations and battle against the epidemic.

ACQUISITIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year, we continued to focus on the market and seek suitable
acquisition opportunities. While insisting on the internal growth model
and prudent acquisition strategy, the Group adhered to our usual
acquisition strategy, and looked for development and acquisition
opportunities of community services and consulting services and
focused on the synergy between acquisition projects and the Group's
business.

Refer to the announcements of the Company made on 29 March 2019,
11 April 2019, 21 June 2019 and 5 July 2019. The Group acquired
approximately 56% of MAG for a total of 7,057 shares. Through the
acquisition, we introduced MAG's advanced educational philosophy
and high-quality curriculum system to enable the Group’s cultural and
educational business, form complementary advantages with the
existing business, and promote the core competitiveness of the
group'’s cultural and educational business.

The Group will continue to pay attention to the effective integration of
the business and management team of the target with existing
management and control system and business resources of the Group.
We will promote the acquisition of the target to quickly achieve its
business objectives, and promote the development of the Group's
business.

We believe that through the acquisition and equity cooperation, we
can quickly promote the development or upgrading of our strategic
and new business, improve the business model of our existing
business, and make a better contribution to the growth of the Group's
business. After that, we will continue to focus on the market in
accordance with the Group's acquisition strategy to capture the right
acquisition opportunities.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The AGM will be held on 19 June 2020 and a notice convening the
AGM will be published and dispatched in the manner as required by

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules"”) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(a)

For the purpose of determining the qualification of the
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 16 June
2020 to 19 June 2020, both days inclusive. In order to qualify to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents are required
to be lodged accompanied by the relevant share certificates with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 15 June 2020.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend (subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM), the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 29 June 2020 to 30 June 2020, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
are required to lodge all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 26 June 2020.
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THE RISK ON THE OPERATION AFFECTED BY
THE COVID-19 PNEUMONIA EPIDEMIC

Since early 2020, the COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic has been
spreading all over the country and as of the date of this report, the
battle for the prevention and control of the epidemic is still on-going.
Recently, the widespread of the COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic is
affecting many countries around the world. The World Health
Organization declared that the COVID-19 Pneumonia has become a
public emergency of international concern. In the event that the
COVID-19 Pneumonia epidemic continues, there exists an uncertainty
of its impacts on the operation of the Company.

At present, the Company’s business operation is normal. The Company
will continue to closely monitor the situation of the COVID-19
Pneumonia epidemic, assess its impacts on the Company in areas such
as financial position and operating results, and will continue to enforce
strictly the prevention and control measures to protect the safety of
employees in accordance with the national epidemic prevention and
control requirements. In the meantime, we will continue our best
efforts to ensure the smooth execution of operation and management
work for the stable operation of the Company, and to satisfy the needs
of our customers, in order to minimize the impacts of the COVID-19
Pneumonia epidemic on the Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS AND INTEREST
RISKS

The Group conducts substantially all of its business in Mainland China
and in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed to limited foreign
currency exchange rate risk. The Group has not entered into any
foreign exchange hedging arrangement during the year. However, due
to the Acquisition and the Loan, the depreciation or appreciation of
the US dollar and the Australian dollar and the adjustment of interest
rates will have impact on the Group's performance. The Group will
continue to closely monitor its exposure to exchange rate and interest
rate risks and actively explore foreign exchange hedging options with
major banks, and may employ derivative financial instruments to hedge
against risks when necessary.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Our Group adheres to its philosophy of “people-oriented and service-
oriented” and regards our employees as its top asset. We aim to add
partnership-sourced income to the compensation system and provide
diversified training and personal development platforms to our
employees. The remuneration package offered to the staff was in line
with their duties and the prevailing market terms. Discretionary
bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions. Staff benefits,
including pension, medical coverage, provident funds are also
provided to employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, our Group had 29,152 employees, an increase
of 16.7%. The total staff cost was RMB2,729.1 million, an increased rate
of 30.3% compared with the year of 2018. The increase of managed
GFA and revenue were 24.6% and 27.9% correspondently.
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OBJECTIVES

Transparency in corporate information forms part of the basis for
investors’ confidence towards listed company, though it is also the
responsibility of a public company. A stable, diversified shareholders
base in which communication is effective, is essential to facilitate
shareholders value creation. And in the process, it could contribute to
a stable share price performance. This is a valuable intangible asset for
the Company. And IR is the very bridge of two-way communication
amongst shareholders, investment institutions and the public at one
end, whilst that of listed company at the other. Externally, in
compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company provides regular, real-
time, accurate and complete corporate information and updates. This
facilitates shareholders and the public alike to understand the
Company's operation and value, the state of development. Should this
be well co-ordinated, this should contribute to the establishment of a
long term and mutual relationship between the Company, shareholders
and the public. In the meantime, the Company is able to make known
of its corporate culture, business philosophy, strategy and planning, as
well as industry changes. This would enable investors and the public to
appreciate the Company’s positioning in the industry, business model
and competitive advantages, differentiating the Company from the
peers further. Internally, the Company takes shareholders and the
public’'s independent and valuable opinion seriously. Through
dialogues, the Company would listen and consider their views, aiming
to enhance the Company's corporate governance.

CAPITAL MARKET RECOGNITION

Since the Listing in 2016, the Company has been researching diligently
on the capital markets and its expectation towards the Company.
Through various communication channels, the Company has built
effective and two-way relationships with shareholders, investors, fund
managers and analysts, other related parties in the capital markets and
the public. The Company is very honoured to receive many
recognitions in the capital market in the past year:

— In the last year, the Company became the subject of the reports
prepared by 30 domestic and international brokers.
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MAJOR COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

1.

"Wechat Official Account” — Company'’s latest news will be
updated weekly

Brokers, investment banks organized investor marketing activities

Reverse roadshows — regularly invite investors to visit our
headquarters and communities we manage to conduct onsite
research

Twice a year results announcement and public briefing
Media reports

Wechat Official Account — " #&35 iR # 2869IR” (only
available in Chinese version)

In order to maintain timely communication with the market, the
Company has set up the Wechat Official Account in 2016,
covering three main aspects: capital market development,
business development, and owner resident feedback. It is to
keep the market and the investors informed of the latest business
development in the business segments of the Company. The
contents include analyst reports, media coverage, awards,
strategic cooperation, takeover, new business plan, development
and growth of existing business etc. We reasonably and strictly
follow the rules to maintain information disclosure and
transparency as much as possible. Throughout the year of 2019,
the Company published 61 articles on Wechat in total, with an
average of 1.2 articles per week. Currently, we have more than
1,790 followers.

Marketing activities organized by brokers and
investment banks

The Company has participated in various roadshows and
conferences organized by brokers and investment banks in China,
met with a large number of investment institutions, and actively
maintained communication with the market. The Company is
pleased to interact with the investors and keep them informed of
the business development. During the Period, the Company met
with 939 investors in total (including repeated visits), representing
a significant increase in the number of investors and institutions
met compared to 2018. Meanwhile, the Company has
participated in various roadshows internationally, such as in
Singapore and London, to expand the base of overseas investors.
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Date Organizer Events Venue
B HEE 2RE8E bk
2019.1.7 UBS 19th Greater China Conference Shanghai
IniR&EE F19ERBARPERTE +tiE
2019.1.14 dbAccess dbAccess China Conference 2019 Shenzhen
BRERT 019 BEERITAPERTE R
2019.1.16 BNP Paribas BNPP APAC FIG Conference 2019 Hong Kong
EBIEARIRTT 2019 £ B RRITEASBIMER S BB
2019.4.24 Industrial Securities Industrial Securities Overseas Investment Conference Shenzhen
B8 5 HEBIMIERES el
2019.4.25 Haitong Securities  Haitong Securities Real Estate Conference Hangzhou
BBE S R EN KRS S EAl
2019.5.15-5.16 CITIC&CLSA China Forum 2019 Qingdao
PE&RERS 2019 R EmiE 55
2019.6.12-6.13 Goldman Sachs Greater China Corporate Day Hong Kong
=124 RPELERE e
2019.6.27-6.28 CITI Asia Pacific Property Conference 2019 Hong Kong
TEM8 2019 E RS E T & B
2019.9.4 Nomura China Investor Forum 2019 Shanghai
B E S 2019 ER & w1 +E
2019.9.10 CLSA 26th CLSA Investors’ Forum Hong Kong
RIEES TEESFE26EREES e
2019.9.18 Haitong Securities  Haitong Securities Overseas Investment
Conference 2019 Shanghai
BB 2019 F BRBBFBINREES i
2019.10.23 Guoseng Securities  Capital Market Annual Conference 2019 Suzhou
B A% 58 55 019 FREEATISIES N
2019.11.6 Goldman Sachs China Conference 2019 Shenzhen
= 2019 B & w18 il
2019.11.8 CITI China Investor Conference 2019 Macau
fEIf 2019 EiR B w18 L
2019.11.21 CITIC&CLSA Capital Market Annual Conference 2020 Shenzhen
PE&PERESD 2020 8 A5 FE Y
2019.12.20 CITIC Annual Summit Beijing
h1E PIEFEREE =
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Reverse Roadshow and Open Day — regularly invite 3.
shareholders and investors to visit our headquarters
and communities we manage

During the Period, the Company held various Open-Day activities
and proactively conducted reverse roadshows, inviting investors,
fund managers, analysts and media to visit our headquarters as
well as communities under our management to conduct onsite
research. It is an opportunity to showcase our various services
and operation openly to capital market, and follow up with
management discussion. Given the increasing demand from
investors, throughout 2019 the Company organized 64 on-site
visits in total.

No. of reverse roadshows

REEEMRKAESR — EMBE
BRR REARGABREEERE

A RAZRBRARAED > £
FERRARELE BHREA E2
IR DATEDAERRE - KRR BRE RE
EEREMAMER  AFBEABAE
AMGRRAAANSAER  LHEER
BT - FEERE AR KB
20192%F - AR —HABT 4RERE
) o

ke E#E
2016 2017 2018 2019
No. of activities FEE- N 4 23 43 64
No. of visitors EJIUN 19 169 234 135
Twice a year results announcement and public briefing 4. BEMREERKS

The two results announcements followed by briefing conducted
in the financial year, are great opportunities for the Company to
meet with a large number of shareholders and investors,
discussing business and prospects directly. Therefore the
Company actively engages, with great detail, in presenting our
core as well as the three service lines business. The impact is
noticeable.

Investment report from brokers and investment banks 5.
The Company is honoured to be recognized by the capital
market. In 2019, the Company received 57 reports with 55 of
them giving investment rating.

No. of issued investment reports

BEMAEEREMEERNEMSHI
BEMKE  ERARMAEBMHRRME
BEARE  BEMWEBMER - FTIA
REHREBMFAN B A F]
BEEL UR=ZEXBRNELE

58 RITHBRERS
NBFRRBEE EREATSHES
20194 » NAIRESHFEHBREMNRES

3 EAR S5 MIRE R AR -

REFEBRMHHE
2016 2017 2018 2019
No. of total issued report B3k s e g 10 39 50 57
(of which) No. of Buy (He) B AR 30 46 33
(of which) No. of upgraded (Eh)IRFABEEE — 19 15 16
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6. Improvement of Roadshows Information 6. HEEBIUE
Every roadshow represents a valuable opportunity for the F—RBEEHEARBREEARRNE
Company to communicate with the investors. Thus, the Company Efte RRFMAZSESRN - flanELs
strives to optimize investors education through various methods BHeRhCESTERSE B LM
including result presentation and corporate video. The Company KEEHNE - ARARZZREENOLE
revises the presentation regularly and on-time, with reference to FEERTRBEMNER  FHEREE
the feedback from the investors, and the demand of the investors R -

at different stage.

Brokers 5E Rating FEAR
1 CITIC PIEES Buy BA
2 CLSA FEES Buy A
3 HSBC EEEE Buy EA
4 Guosheng Securities B 2% 75 25 Buy EA
5 Tianfeng Securities RNEF S Buy EA
6 First Shanghai Group E—LF Buy A
7 UBS IniR & Buy A
8 DBS ERIRIT Buy A
9 CMBI HIREER Buy A
10 Oriental-Patron REFS Buy BA
1 Northeast Securities HibE S Buy BA
12 Soochow Securities RRFES Buy BA
13 Sealand Securities Bl &% 5 Buy EA
14 Guotai Junan Securities BRE%L Recommend e
15 Huachuang Securities EAIT S Recommend HE
16 Dongxing Securities RETE 5 Recommend e
17 Haitong Securities BRES Outperform BRAT
18 CGSCIMB EREE = Add S
19 Industrial Securities B2 KA Add prp
20  Guosen Securities Bl{=& % Add ek
21 Galaxy International HROA B Add BEF
22 CIml EEEE Neutral it
23 Goldman Sachs SR E Neutral At
24 CICC kAN Neutral it
25 Nomura BF A 5B A Neutral A
26 JP Morgan FEIR K Neutral AR
27 BAML EIRFEM Neutral Pt
28 SWS RERR Neutral FRE
29 CRIC RIS Neutral At
Not Rated K& 4%
30 Founder Securities FIEEH N/A T EA
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Li Hairong (Z=3#§%§), aged 62, was our sole Director from the date
of the incorporation of our Company until 26 November 2015 and was
re-designated as our chairman and executive Director on 27 November
2015. From June 1997 to September 1998, Ms. Li held various positions
at Greentown Property Group Co., Ltd. (4¢3 E b E £ B A R A 7))
(being the wholly- owned subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900),
including being its vice general manager, executive vice general
manager and executive general manager. She joined our Group in
October 1998 and has been responsible for the development strategy
and strategic planning of our Group as well as for making decisions for
material operational matters. Ms. Li was the Chairman of Greentown
Property Management Service Group Co., Ltd. (“Greentown Property
Management”) from October 1998 to March 2018, and was also its
general manager from October 1998 to February 2011, where she was
primarily responsible for its overall management and daily operation.
She also served as the executive general manager of Greentown
Holdings Group Co. Ltd. (“Greentown Holdings”) from January 2006
to October 2015.

In addition, Ms. Li currently holds directorship in various other
subsidiaries of our Company.

Ms. Li graduated from the Department of Basic Specialized Training for
Party and Government Officials (I E 12 # # A H(EH}) of Zhejiang
Radio and Television University (4T )T & & & & KX £) in Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (#Z£7£), aged 48, has been an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company since 27 November 2015.
He was appointed as the vice Chairman of the Board and ceased to be
the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 23 March
2018. He is responsible for making decisions for material operational
matters, participating in Board decisions and implementing the
resolutions of the Board. Mr. Yang joined our Group in February 2002
and has served in various positions in Greentown Property
Management, including the assistant to general manager from April
2002 to March 2003, the vice general manager from March 2003 to
February 2008, the executive vice general manager from February 2008
to January 2009, the executive general manager from January 2009 to
February 2011, the general manager from February 2011 to March 2018
and the chairman of its board of directors since May 2019. He is also
the Chairman of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting Co. Ltd
(I E i ZE BB R A 7)) and is in charge of its development
strategy and strategic planning.
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In addition, Mr. Yang currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Yang is the vice president of China Property Management
Association (FEI¥ZEE 1% ) and president of Hangzhou Property
Management Association (711 T ¥ % & 2 #% ). He graduated from
Zhejiang University (4T A22) in Hangzhou, the PRC and Hunan University
(FKX2) in Changsha, the PRC majoring in real estate development
and management, and business administration, respectively.

Mr. Wu Zhihua (RE&E), aged 41, has been our executive Director
since 27 November 2015. On 4 August 2018, Mr. Wu was appointed as
the Chief Financial Officer. He is responsible for the overall business
operation and daily management of our Group, making decisions for
material operational matters, participating in Board decisions and
implementing the resolutions of the Board. Before joining our Group,
Mr. Wu worked in Zhejiang Guesthouse Co., Ltd. (T EEEBR A F])
from July 2002 to June 2003. Mr. Wu joined our Group in June 2003
and was subsequently promoted as the vice executive general
manager and the general manager of Zhejiang Lvsheng Property
Management Company Limited (4 /T 4% F+ ¥ % & 12 B R A @) from
April 2008 to August 2008 and from August 2008 to December 2008,
respectively. He also served as the assistant to general manager, the
vice general manager, the vice executive general manager and
Chairman of Greentown Property Management from January 2009 to
February 2011, from February 2011 to November 2014, from December
2014 to March 2018, and from March 2018 to May 2019, respectively.

In addition, Mr. Wu currently holds directorships in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Wu is now the president of the Property Management Association
of Xihu District, Hangzhou (#7171 78 48 [& ¥ % & £ % €). Mr. Wu
graduated from Zhejiang University (#T)T X2) in Hangzhou, the PRC
with a bachelor’s degree majoring in tourism management, and
obtained his master’s degree in science in quality management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (B2 T A ) in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chen Hao (F&J%), aged 50, has been our executive Director since
27 November 2015. He joined our Group in May 2015 as a vice general
manager primarily responsible for the management of community
products and services of the Group. He has been a director of
Greentown Property Management since November 2015 and a director
of Zhejiang Twin Cities Network Company Limited since April 2015. Mr.
Chen has served as a director of Hong Kong Hung Seun International
Resources Limited (/882 ERERARAA]), a company primarily
engaged in trade of copper, market research and fund investment,
since October 2009. He is also the director of the Ningbo Yule
Investment Co. Ltd. (the joint venture of the Group) from August 2018
and holds the director position in MAG since July 2019. Mr. Chen
studied in Jiangsu Xinhai Senior High School GTZ#FE=F) (formerly
known as Jiangsu Xinhai Secondary School (JL&R#T /& £2)).

In addition, Mr. Chen currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shou Bainian (2484 ), aged 66, has been our non-executive Director
since 27 November 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Mr. Shou became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2000. Mr. Shou has more than 15
years' experience in the property development industry. He worked as
the vice executive chairman and the general manager of Greentown
Property Group Co., Ltd. (A& EHES B ER 2 F]) (being the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900)) from April 1998 to
March 2015 and was primarily responsible for its overall business
operation and financial management. He is the director of Greentown
Holdings from January 2002 and is primarily responsible for its overall
business operation and financial management. He also served as the
executive director of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900) from July 2006 to April
2018. Mr. Shou is qualified as a senior economist (& & #& 7 Af) in
enterprise operation and management by Zhejiang Province Human
Resources and Social Security Department (T T4& A 1 &R G R
[ E2). Mr. Shou graduated from Hangzhou University (11 Jil X £) in
Zhejiang Province, the PRC with a bachelor's degree majoring in
history.
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Ms. Xia Yibo (E
since 27 November 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance

—i¥), aged 57, has been our non-executive Director

and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Ms. Xia became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2002. Ms. Xia was the chairlady of
Hangzhou Greentown Decorating and Design Co., Ltd. (fu/H#z3# 5 &

& 5 A R 2 7l) from September 1996 to August 2002. She has also
been the chalrlady of Shanghal Wanley Insurance Broker Co., Ltd. (&
8 8RB & 42 B BR A7) (wholly owned by Hangzhou Greentown
Capital Holdings Group Co. Ltd) from September 2002 to March 2018.
Ms. Xia has been serving as the director of Greentown Holdings since
September 2002 and is now the chairman of this company. Ms. Xia
graduated from the Department of Chinese of Zhejiang Radio and
Television University (4 /T f& & B 18 X £) in Zhejiang Province, the
PRC.

Mr. Wang Guangjian (E #3), aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 6 January 2020, graduated from Chongging University with
a master’s degree in technical economics and management in
December 2001. Mr. Wang has served in Chongqging Longhu
Development Company Limited ("Chongqing Longhu”) since 2000
and is currently the chairman of the board of directors of Chongging
Longhu. Since 2017, Mr. Wang has served as the vice president of
Longfor Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange) (stock code: 960)) and the chairman of the
board of directors of Longhu Property Service Co. Ltd and has been
appointed as an executive director of Longfor Group Holdings Limited
on 24 March 2020. Since 2019, Mr. Wang has also served as the chief
executive officer of Guanyu Commercial Management Co. Ltd.
Furthermore, from February 2013 to December 2016, Mr. Wang was
the general manager of Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real Estate Co., Ltd.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (3% B3 Bl), aged 58, has been our independent
non-executive Director since 12 July 2016. He is responsible for
supervising and providing independent opinions to the Board. He
holds a master’s degree in international accounting, a post-graduate
diploma in laws, a bachelor’s degree in laws and a bachelor’s degree in
business studies. He has over 29 years of experience in regulatory
affairs, listed company corporate finance, listed companies governance
and management. He is an executive director, vice president and
company secretary of Huabao International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 336), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
Honghua Group Limited (Stock Code: 196), Yanzhou Coal Mining
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1171), AUX International Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 2080), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 1292), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 631), Sunac China Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1918), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1249), TUS International Limited (Stock Code: 872), Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2789) and Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 2362). Mr. Poon was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Chong Kin Group Holdings Limited from
5 January 2018 to 6 June 2018 (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1609).

Mr. Poon was awarded the postgraduate diploma in laws by the
University of London. He holds a Bachelor degree in Laws and a
Bachelor degree in Business Studies and a Master degree in
International Accounting. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia, the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a member of its Technical
Consultation Panel, Mainland China Focus Group and Audit
Committee.
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Mr. Wong Ka Yi (£ % H), aged 45, has been our independent non-
executive Director since 12 July 2016. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent opinions to our Board. Mr. Wong Ka Yi
currently serves as a director and investment director of Regent Capital
Management Co. Limited. He is a licensed person to conduct type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO. He was a
director and investment director of HX Innovation Capital Management
Co. Limited from October 2017 to February 2019. He was a director
and investment director of China Metamorphosis Investment Limited
from June 2017 to October 2017. He was a managing director of
Fundatech Capital Limited from February 2015 to May 2018, worked as
a portfolio manager in HT Capital Management Limited and Munsun
Asset Management (Asia) Limited. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst
recognized by the CFA Institute. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Feng (Z£[8l), aged 61, has been our independent non-executive Director
since 5 December 2017, and he has years of rich experience in property
management industry and he currently is the general manager of
Shanghai Donghu Property Management Co., Ltd. (/@SB % B2
BPBRAF]). He served as management in Honggiao State Guest Hotel
Shanghai (_E /84T 15 i & £8), Dongjiao State Guest Hotel (8 2 & £8)
and Shanghai Lilac Garden Hotel (/8T HEEEEE). Mr. Li is a vice
president of China Property Management Association (77 Bl #) % & 12
#%®&) and Shanghai Property Management Association ( L /8M ¥ %E
I 1T ¥ 1 €). He is also the vice director of the Industrial Research
Committee on China Property Management Association (FF B %) % &
BHeEXERMRTEES).

Mr. Li was awarded as the Leader of the 25th anniversary of the Trade
Association of Shanghai Property Management (/8T ¥ ¥ & 1217 % #
BB F RIKEEE AY) in 2019, the outstanding Entrepreneur of
2018 Shanghai Modern Service Industry (2018 _E/BIR R RFBEEF B
%), Person of the Year of 2015 in Property Management Industry (2015 %]
EEBITEFE AY) in 2015, Shanghai Brand Strategy Implementation
of 20 Years Influential 50 People (/8B EEREEE20FBZE50A) in
2014, Shanghai World Expo Advanced Individual (/8 & i EA)
in 2010 and China’ s Economy 100 Outstanding Figures (1 B48 7 B &4t
i A #7) in 2003. Mr. Li was qualified as a senior economist by Shanghai
Accreditation Committee for the Qualifications of Senior Professional and
Technical Positions Majoring in Commercial and Industrial in the Economic
Feld( LBETRBERINIBLBEEXSREXRMBREEIBRERSE
FEZ B ). He was also qualified as a Shanghai government procurement
review expert (/8T T ERE T FE ). He graduated from Shanghai
University (_E/8 A2 in Shanghai, the PRC with a master’s degree majoring
in management engineering.
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Ms. Wu Aiping (R &), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2020, graduated
from Xiamen University with a bachelor’s degree in Finance in July
1987. Ms. Wu obtained the qualification of Certified Public Accountant
from the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1998 and became a Certified Public Valuer and a Certified Tax Agents
in February 2007 and December 2011, respectively. From March 2003
to December 2015, Ms. Wu had held various positions in the group
companies of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3900)), including
the roles of deputy chief accountant, manager of the audit department,
manager of the finance department, assistant to the general manager
and deputy general manager.

Senior Management
For details of Mr. Wu Zhihua (R EZE), please refer to the sub-section
headed “— Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Jin Keli (£%&), aged 37, has been our Chief Operating Officer
since 23 March 2018. She is responsible for management work in
relation to the overall operation of our Group as well as for
management of administration and human resources. Ms. Jin joined
our Group in May 2006, and served as administrative president and
executive general manager of Zhejiang Xinhu Lvcheng Property Service
Company Limited (41T #1430 ¥ 2 R 7B BR 2 B1) from January 2012
to January 2014, and from January 2014 to July 2017, respectively. She
also worked as the assistant to president, vice president and president
of Greentown Property Management from February 2015 to July 2017,
from August 2017 to March 2018 and from March 2018 to present,
respectively. Ms. Jin graduated from China University of Political
Science and Law (Bl EUE K &), with a bachelor’ s degree majoring
in philosophy.

Mr. Yuan Weidong (R &), aged 50, has been our Chief Technology
Officer since 27 November 2015. He is responsible for the coordination
and operation of the “smart community” project of our Group. Prior to
joining our Group in November 2014, Mr. Yuan worked in NEC
Telecommunications Co., Ltd. (B E#&E R 2 7) from July 1992 to
May 2002 as the head of the engineering technology department and
the general manager of eastern China region. He also worked as the
vice executive general manager of Zhejiang Ronghui Communications
Equipment Co., Ltd. (# /T ghIE 815 2 & B IR 2 7)) from May 2002 to
May 2014. Mr. Yuan has been a Senior Engineer in Electronic
Information authorized by Tianjin Municipal Personnel Bureau
(REMAZER) since October 2001. He graduated from Jilin University
(FMARE) in Changchun, the PRC in July 1992 with a bachelor's degree
majoring in electronics and information systems.
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Mr. Zhou Hong (), aged 53, he is now our Chief Safety Officer, he
joined the Group in October 1998, he is now also vice president of
Greentown Property Service Company Limited (4% ¥ 5 R 7E B R A 7).
He is now responsible for the security management operation of the
Group. He has also been the general manager of Greentown Property
Service Company Limited (Shanghai Branch) (4x3 ¥ 3 R 7% _E /85 A 7))
from February 2013 to August 2018.

Ms. Weng Yafei (§EE7), aged 40, she is now our Chief Quality Officer,
she is now responsible for the management of the service quality and
customer relationship of the Group. Ms. Weng joined the Group in
June 2001, she is now vice president of Greentown Property Service
Company Limited. She has been the general manager of Greentown
Property Service Company Limited (5th branch) since February 2013
and she was the general manager of Greentown Property Service
Company Limited (Chongqging Branch) from February 2015 to
November 2016. Ms. Weng graduated from the Program of
Management of Xi" an Jiaotong University (78 % 22 8 K 2) in Shaanxi
Province, the PRC.

Ms. Xu Yaping (#R325), aged 40, she is now our Chief Marketing Officer,
she is now responsible market development of our Group. Ms. Xu
joined the Group in October 1998, she is now vice president of
Greentown Property Service Company Limited. She has held various
position of the Group, including being vice general manager of
Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting Group (/T4 = HEEFE
) & E) (formerly known as Zhejiang Greentown Property Consulting
Company Limited (47T 4% 3 #) % 54 30 B BR 2 7])). She has also been
the general manager of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting
Group with effect since January 2013. Ms. Xu graduated from the
Program of Marketing of Hangzhou Commercial School (#7117 263
in Hangzhou City, the PRC.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company carried out the global offering (the “Global Offering”)
on 28 June 2016, comprising of 777,776,000 Shares at HK$1.99 per
Share. For details of the relevant use of proceeds, please see the
section headed "Use of Net Proceeds from Listing” below.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of residential
property management services in the PRC, which includes three types
of services: property services, consulting services and community living
services. An analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 144 to 145 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.075
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019. The final
dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 19 June 2020 (the “AGM") and will be paid on
or before 15 July 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 29 June 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend is the embodiment of the operational capability of the
Company, which is also a commitment to share the results of the
Company's growth with all shareholders. The payment and the amount
of dividends (if any) depend on our results of operation, cash flows,
financial position, future prospects, and other factors that we may
consider relevant. Pursuant to the dividend policy of the Company
disclosed in the Prospectus, and combined with the payments of the
dividends after Listing, we intend to pay dividends in the amount of
not less than 25% of our profit after tax for each year. Annual dividend
is subject to the approval of general meeting of shareholders. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the laws
of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong and the articles of
association of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2019, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing, a discussion on the Group's future
business development and an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period using key financial performance indicators
are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 22
to 41 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been working on sustainable development and
environmental protection. We spare no effort in making the most out
of resources in our business. Laws and regulations in terms of
environment and health are strictly complied with. Meanwhile, the
Group holds various activities to promote environmental protection in
our business. Our goal is to educate proprietors and all walks of life on
creating a green city for the future.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group clearly understands the importance of regulatory
compliance and the risk of non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. To the best of the Board's knowledge, during the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2019, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2016, issuing 777,776,000 new shares, raising a
total of HK$1.472 billion (equivalent to RMB1.2658 billion) net of
underwriting costs and related expenses.
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In order to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of allocating the
net proceeds from the Global Offering, the Board resolved to make
the following changes to the intended use of proceeds from the Global
Offering (please refer to the announcement of the Company released
on 15 September 2017 for details):

1. approximately 49% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$721.3 million to be used for acquisition of target companies,
without the limitation on the types of company, whether property
management or those that provide value-added services, in
supporting the Company’s business development and expansion
strategy;

2. approximately 25% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$368.0 million (i.e. increased by 15 percentage points from
10% as disclosed in the Prospectus) to be used for working
capital and general corporate purpose, and in particular, for the
purpose of repayment of debts for the target companies to be
acquired, the development of such target companies following
the acquisition and the additional costs expected to be incurred
by the Company for the management of such target companies;
and

3. approximately 7% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$103.0 million (i.e. decreased by 15 percentage points as
compared to the 22% as disclosed in the Prospectus) to be used
to develop and promote our “smart community” project and our
community products and services.

During the Reporting Period, the uses of net proceeds were distributed
as following:

1. approximately 49% of the net proceeds to be used for acquisition
of target companies (has been fully used)

2. approximately 25% of the net proceeds to be used for working
capital and general corporate purpose (has been fully used)

3. approximately 7% of the net proceeds to be used to develop and
promote our “smart community” project and our community

products and services (has been fully used)

4. approximately 19% were used to repay loan (has been fully used)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's sales revenue from
its five largest customers accounted for 2.6% (31 December 2018: 2.0%)
of the Group's total revenue and our single largest customer
accounted for 1.4% (31 December 2018: 0.8%) of the Group's total
revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 7.8% (31 December 2018: 8.7%) of the Group's
total purchases and our single largest supplier accounted for 3.7% (31
December 2018: 5.3%) of the Group's total purchases.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 31(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 31(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and pages 148 to 149 of this annual
report under the section headed “Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity”.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution (including share premium, share option reserve and
retained earnings of the Company), amounted to approximately
RMB1,103,063,000 (31 December 2018: RMB1,136,420,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

For the operation needs, one subsidiary of the Group got loan from
the bank during the year. The accumulated loans of the year amounted
to RMB371.7 million, and the total interest was RMB11.4 million. As at
31 December 2019, the balance of bank loans was RMB482.8 million.
Save as disclosed above, the Group had no bank loans regarded to be
recorded. The Group is flush with cash.
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Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 21
June 2019. On 21 June 2019, Greentown Education Holding Group Co.
Ltd, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower
(the "Borrower”) and the Company and Greentown Property Service
Group Co. Ltd, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collectively, as the guarantors entered into a facility agreement and
related financing documents (the “Facility Agreement”) with Standard
Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Lender”) in relation to a
loan facility in the principal amount of USD49 million with a term of
three years. The Company will pledge to the Lender the 100% equity
of the Borrower together with all ancillary rights and claims associated
with the equity upon the Completion.

As of the date of the Report, the relevant pledge registration has been
completed.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Shou Bainian

Ms. Xia Yibo

Mr. Wang Guangjian (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company's articles of association
(the "Articles of Association”), Mr. Wang Guangjian as non-executive
Director appointed on 6 January 2020 and Ms. Wu Aiping as an
independent non-executive Director appointed on é January 2020 as
addition to the existing Board shall retire and, being eligible, offer
himself/herself for re-election at the AGM.
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In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Li
Hairong, Mr. Yang Zhangfa, Mr. Shou Bainian, and Mr. Li Feng shall
retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders dated 27 April 2020.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 47 to 54 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which is renewable automatically for successive terms of three years
subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years, which may be renewable subject to both parties’
agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or entity connected
with the Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
managements and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR’S AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S INFORMATION

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 6
January 2020. The appointment of Mr. Wang Guangjian (E£#) as a
non-executive Director and the appointment of Ms.Wu Aiping (5= & )
as an independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the

Company took effect from 6 January 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirmed that no information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in Shares of the Company
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Notes:

Mr. Shou Bainian holds all issued shares in Lily International Investment Company
Limited (“Lily International Investment”), which holds 39% of the issued shares in
Orchid Garden Investment Company Limited (“Orchid Garden Investment”).

Ms. Xia Yibo holds all issued shares in Shenalan International Investment Company
Limited (“ShenaLan International Investment”), which holds 21% of the issued
shares in Orchid Garden Investment. Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse of Mr. Song
Weiping.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited (“Osmanthus Garden
Investment”), Lily International Investment and Shenalan International Investment
are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid Garden Investment,
Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are deemed to be parties acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all deemed to
be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden Investment (being
1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Ms. Li Hairong holds all issued shares of Lilac International Investment Company
Limited (“Lilac International Investment”). Accordingly, Ms. Li Hairong is deemed
to be interested in the total Shares directly held by Lilac International Investment
(being 563,334,000 Shares in total).

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company dated 27 December
2019 and 6 January 2020. Lilac International Investment as the Vendor, Sail Link
Holdings Limited (“Sail Link”, a subsidiary of Longfor Group Holdings Limited
("Longfor Group”) (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 960)) as Purchaser, Ms.Li Hairong, Juntion Development
Hong Kong (Holding) Limited (“Juntion Development”) (a subsidiary of Longfor
Group) respectively as Guarantors agreed to enter into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the Share Sale, a total number of 139,465,661 Shares,
represent approximately 5% of the total issued share capital of the Company (the
“transaction”), and was completed on 6 January 2020. After completion, Lilac
International Investment holds 423,868,339 shares of the Company (approximately
15.20% of the total issued shares of the Company).

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Ms. Li Hairong is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Ju Jianhua is interested in. Mr. Ju Jianhua is
one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa is a beneficial owner of the Shares.

Mr. Wu Zhihua is a beneficial owner of the Shares.
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(i) REBEEER

(i) Interests in associated corporations

Number of  Approximate

Nature of Name of associated issued share percentage of
Name interest corporation capital interest  shareholding
B8 AR
] EEME HEEEERE RAESHE B
(%)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa Beneficial interest Shenyang Greentown N/A 20.00
Property Services
Company Limited
BEELE BaEs G EREBR AR NaEm 20.00

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate or had exercised any such right.

B EXPIEEESN - M2019F 124318 » #
BEESAARAHZESHTBRABRARRAREMN
BOEE (& R(ESF MHERGDEXVER) &
Bty ~ HEARDRERES  BHREGE?

KREIEGRBDEXVERT 8D BAME AR
A R R PR SO R (BRRE(ES L
BIFRPDEZFEBEEREFRARER N
BmlRR)  RABTLRREGESF MBI
I)EIS2EATHEENELMA - HRFSR
5T AIZAR G AR E) MR P e (R A e g%

A

£
EERERONEEFNER
BAARFRAREE SN - D AR AHE

NP E B E A LR SR 2B
HEEFAREBEAARSEMNEMEAERE
R skfEEEmMER  AXBEERREF AR
B 18ER A T A F R TE M F AR R

AR BV RAE A EAEA B R H I A S E TS
0 RETTREMZSER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERRRIRH R AGBIR G5 h ik
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND mRAR

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the R 2019412 A31H * BtE S - T AT
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the (WIFEFH AR ZZITHAER ) RAREIK
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying {3 EiMERERY 10 B B IECGEHF N EIE (E01)EE
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions ~ XVE %2 &35 Ep/AMARA GBI 2 B RN
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register AR BIRIE(E S MEIE(KHI)EE 336 187B T &
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the FZZEftRAZERSIAER :

SFO:

Approximate

Percentage of
Shareholding in Long/short
Capacity/Nature Number of the Company position/
Name of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool

RADAEH
BOER  #AE %A
] 54 RREEE gk 4= BOL (%) AHEHNRS
Orchid Garden Investment Nete V#=1Beneficial interest 1,020,000,000 36.57 Long position
Enfks R
Osmanthus Garden Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 36.57 Long position
Investment (etes . (LT -2 REHEEER e
Mr. Song Weiping MNotes 1.2 Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 36.57 Long position
REF LM 2 SR B A
Lily International Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 36.57 Long position
Investment (Notes 1. 9 (&1 -3 ZEHEEER we
Ms. Yao Huanjing Mot 4 Interest of spouse 1,020,000,000 36.57 Long position
B A L e [REL e
Shenalan International Interest of a controlled corporation  1,020,000,000 36.57 Long position
Investment (Notes 1. 5 (i1 5) S EE R e
Lilac International Beneficial interest 563,334,000 20.19 Long position
Investment Note 6) (i1 6) Eé\_%é ﬁ%ﬁé\
Mr. Ju Jianhua Nete? Interest of spouse 563,334,000 20.19 Long position
B e A M) [REL i)
Beneficial interest 28,000,000 1.00 Long position
Hashn R
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Approximate

Percentage of
Shareholding in Long/short
Capacity/Nature Number of the Company position/
Name of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool

REQTH
BORER  #E %R/
mE 513 ERtE BRHBE B (%) AHEERNRG
Longfor Group Holding Ltd. ™*® |nterest of a controlled corporation 294,273,094 10.55 Long position
EAEEERAR LR S RIEGLAEE R A
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Interest of a controlled corporation 5,149,929 0.18  Short position
SESDEE R R KRB
Interest of a controlled corporation/ 166,760,937 598  Long position
Investment Manager S

R EEs REKE
Approved lending agent 91,582,975 3.28 Lending pool
R HARTEA A S H AR D
Notes: MiEE

Orchid Garden Investment is owned as to 40.0%, 39.0% and 21.0% by Osmanthus
Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment, respectively.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid
Garden Investment, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment
and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all deemed to
be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden Investment (being
1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Osmanthus Garden Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song
Weiping is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Osmanthus Garden
Investment for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Song Weiping is the spouse
of Ms. Xia Yibo.

Lily International Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Shou Bainian. Mr. Shou Bainian
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lily International Investment for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Orchid Garden Investment F1 Osmanthus Garden
Investment - Lily International Investment &
Shenalan International Investment % 51l 5 40.0% -
39.0% [ 21.0% K)#E# °

H1 Osmanthus Garden Investment - Lily International
Investment }z Shenalan International Investment i
# Orchid Garden Investment [ # # 4 i 7 # 25 -
Osmanthus Garden Investment ~ Lily International
Investment &2 Shenalan International Investment %

BR—BITBAL -

At - REFEE  SHFEERE—KRL &
R #% %% 8+ B H 2 7 BlOsmanthus Garden
Investment ~ Lily International Investment [z
Shenalan International Investment) * ¥R B#A
Orchid Garden Investment B 15 A B & 20 i% 15 42
= (B4 #£1,020,000,000 ARAR ()

Osmanthus Garden Investment i R & F & £ 2 &
B o EFRBEKRODEXVHBME - REFLELE
W A% & % A Osmanthus Garden Investment fT#5 &
HIR DS - REFEAERE—EZTHERS -

Lily International Investment 1 5 10 F 5t &£ & & #
B o CEF R BEGEIDEXVEmE - SAFEE
W18 A A Lily International Investment BT 78 #I%
ks -
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Ms. Yao Huanjing is the spouse of Mr. Shou Bainian. Therefore, Ms. Yao Huanjing is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Shou Bainian is interested in.

Shenalan International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Xia Yibo. Ms. Xia Yibo is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shenalan International Investment.
Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse of Mr. Song Weiping.

Lilac International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Hairong. Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lilac International Investment for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 27 December
2019 and 6 January 2020, respectively. Lilac International Investment as the Vendor,
Sail Link (a subsidiary of Longfor Group (whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 960)) as Purchaser, Ms.Li Hairong, Juntion
Development (a subsidiary of Longfor Group) respectively as Guarantors agreed to
enter into a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the Share Sale, a total
number of 139,465,661 Shares, represent approximately 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company (the “transaction”), and was completed on é January 2020.
After completion, Lilac International Investment holds 423,868,339 shares of the
Company (approximately 15.20% of the total issued shares of the Company).
Longfor Group holds 139,465,661 shares of the Company (approximately 5% of the
Company's total issued shares) through Sail Link.

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Mr. Ju Jianhua is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Ms. Li Hairong is interested in. Mr. Ju Jianhua is
one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme (as defined in the
Prospectus).

The information disclosed above is based on information provided on the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk). As at the date of this annual report, to the
knowledge of the Directors, Longfor Group Holdings Ltd held 139,465,661 shares of
the Company through the companies under its control.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, to the knowledge of

the Directors, they were not aware of any persons (who were not

Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or

short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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Share Options
The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 May 2018 (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

Please refer to the circular of the Group dated 24 April 2018 for details.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties who are working for the interests of the Group an
opportunity to obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus aligning
their interest with the interests of the Group and thereby providing
them with an incentive to work better for the interests of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the employees of the Group
(including Directors and Senior Management) and such other persons
as the Board may consider appropriate may be granted options which
entitle them to subscribe for Shares representing, when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of the Company, up to
a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company as of 25 May
2018, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the
Shareholders to renew the said limit or the Shareholders specifically
approve the grant.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company, the
amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the option is
HK$1.00 (or its equivalent in RMB or any other currency acceptable to
the Company).

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
to each participant in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue. Any further grant of options which would result in the
number of the Shares issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit
must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting at which
such participant and his or her associates must abstain from voting.

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director, chief
executive, or substantial Shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associate must be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors, excluding any independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the share options.

R
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KREEtE]) -
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The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by the
Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall expire
no later than 10 years from the relevant date of the grant. Reference is
made to the announcement issued by the Company dated on 11
September 2018. On 11 September 2018, the Company issued a total
of 133.5 million share options to a number of directors and employees
(the “Grantees”), subject to acceptance by the Grantees. Since some
of the Grantees are no longer eligible participants or do not meet the
issuing conditions, 17.9 million share options have automatically lapsed
in accordance with the Rules of the Company’s Share Options Plan. As
at 31 December 2019, total number of shares available for issue under
Share Option Scheme was 248,132,425 Shares (representing
approximately 8.89% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the report (i.e. 2,791,052,425 shares)) remained outstanding.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified
to a participant, provided that such price shall be at least and the
highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of a share
option which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black-Scholes model. Reference is made to the note 28 of
the financial statements of the annual report. Regard to the subjectivity
and uncertainty of the values of options to the effect that such values
are subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the
limitation of the model.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 25 May 2028.
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Details of the share options granted, exercised, lapsed and cancelled & ZE2019F 12 A31BILFE - AQARIBREE
by the Company in accordance with the Share Option Scheme for the R EIDH LY - D17 CERBMECHEHESD

year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: BT BEHIWT
The weighted
No. of No. of average
Share No. of No. of No. of No. of Share closing price
Options Share Share Share Share Options immediately
Outstanding Options Options Options Options ~ Outstanding Exercise before the
atthe Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed at Period during which Price exercise
Beginning of during during during during  the End of Share Options are per Share date of
thePeriod  thePeriod  thePeriod  thePeriod  thePeriod  thePeriod  Date of Grant Exercisable (HKS) the options
HREEE
) i Bn 73 fi&RH
Name of AEFA HAGRE  BREEN B BHEN  BRARN  HAGRE SRIRE  ZAmE
Grantee #% BREZR BREHE BREEA  BREHE RREEE  BREME  REpH URERENER (Bx)  FHUHE
Director £
Ms. Li Hai Rong FRETT 800,000 - - - - 800000 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6116 -
N1859A 1A to 10 September 2028
N19%59811AZ
28595108
Mr. Yang Zhangfa eyt 3,000,000 - - - - 3000000 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6116 -
M8EIANA to 10 September 2028
N9F9IANAE
ABFIA10A
Mr. Wu Zhihua [EERE 4,500,000 - - - - 4500000 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6.116 -
N18F9A118 1010 September 2028
N9EIRNAE
N8F9F108
Mr. Chen Hao [y 2,500,000 - - - - 2500000 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6116 -
N1859A 1A 10 10 September 2028
N9FIRNBE
A28F9F108
10,800,000 - - - - 10,800,000
Employees BI
Certain employees from RATROMERE 111,610,000 - 11,708,525 - 6,846,650 93054825 11 September 2018 From 11 September 2019 6116 8221
subsidiaries, associates, BENAR N18E9E 1B to 10 September 2028
and joint ventures of AELED N9F9R118Z
the Company ETEE N8F9A108
Total E 122410000 - 11,708,525 - 6846650 103,854,825
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme and Share Option Scheme,
the Company has no equity-linked agreements that were entered into
or subsisted during the year of 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

POTENTIAL COMPETING BUSINESSES

Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza

As at 31 December 2019, Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza Property
Management Company Limited (“Zhejiang Greentown Century
Plaza”) is indirectly owned by Greentown Holdings (which is indirectly
owned by Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo as to
40%, 39% and 21%, respectively) as to 98.75%. Zhejiang Greentown
Century Plaza is engaged in the business of property management,
housing and building facilities maintenance and repair, the provision of
gardening services, cleaning services, home services, renovation
services and parking services. The business operated by Zhejiang
Greentown Century Plaza is subject to a non-competition undertaking
executed by Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza in favour of our
Company on 13 January 2016 (as supplemented by a confirmation
letter dated 7 March 2016) (the “"Century Plaza Non-Competition
Undertaking”).

For further details of Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza and the

Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.
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Excluded Group
The below entities (together, the "Excluded Group”) have limited
competition with the Group, details of which are set out as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company Limited
("Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2019, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering is a company established under the laws of the PRC
in September 2005 and owned as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui
Investment and 50% by Hangzhou Guangri Elevator Engineering
Co., Ltd., an independent third party. Zhejiang Gelingtong
Elevator Engineering is engaged in the business of elevator
repair and maintenance services as well as carrying out actual
repair work. Our Group's property management services relating
to elevators are limited to regular inspection of the normal
operation of elevators and supervision of maintenance and repair
work relating to elevators.

Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural Decoration Design and
Engineering Company Limited ("Hangzhou Lvzhen
Architectural”)

As at 31 December 2019, Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural is
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Hangzhou
Lvzhen Architectural is engaged in the business of the provision
of all-inclusive and customized renovation services, including
design and renovation work, and architectural design services.

On 1 April 2016, each of the members of the Excluded Group has
executed a non-competition undertaking in favor of our Company
(as subsequently amended on 30 April 2016).

For further details of the Excluded Group, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors was engaged or had
interest in any business, apart from the business of our Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition undertakings entered into
amongst Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo,
Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment, Shenalan
International Investment and Orchid Garden Investment (the
“Covenantors”) on 13 June 2016 (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken, jointly and severally, with the Company that he/she/it shall
not, and shall procure that its/his/her associates (other than members
of the Group) shall not directly carry on, engage in, invest in,
participate in, attempt to participate in, render any services to, provide
any financial support to or otherwise be involved in or interested in,
whether alone or jointly with another person and whether directly or
indirectly or on behalf of or to assist or act in concert with any other
person, any business or investment activities in the PRC and Hong
Kong which is the same as, similar to or in competition or likely to be in
competition with the business carried on or contemplated to be carried
on by any member of the Group from time to time.

For details of the Deed of Non-competition, please refer to the
Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
Shareholders confirming their compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Reporting Period for disclosure in this annual
report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting
Period based on the information and confirmation provided by or
obtained from the controlling Shareholders, and were satisfied that the
controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the Deed of Non-
competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
UNDER THE LISTING RULES

Advance to an entity under Rule 13.13 of the Listing Rules
The Company and China CVS Holdings Limited (“China CVS") entered
into a convertible note purchase agreement on 27 October 2017 (the
"Convertible Note Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, the
Company has agreed to purchase the Convertible Note in the principal
amount of US$54,000,000 against payment by the Company to China
CVS of such amount (which was then substituted by a new convertible
promissory note issued on 2 November 2018) (the “Convertible
Note"). The Convertible Note bears an interest at 6% per annum and
has a two-year conversion period (the “Conversion Period”). Subject
to the terms and conditions set out in the Convertible Promissory
Note, the Company may, at any time during the Conversion Period,
convert all the Convertible Note into ordinary shares of China CVS at a
conversion price determined in accordance with the terms of the
Convertible Note Purchase Agreement and the Convertible Note.
Please refer to the announcement dated 29 October 2017 and 2
November 2018 for further details.

As at 31 December 2019, the relevant assets ratio (as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules) no longer exceeds 8%. Therefore, the
disclosure requirement under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules is no
longer applicable to the Convertible Note.
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Loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance of the controlling shareholders under Rule
13.18 of the Listing Rules

On 21 June 2019, Greentown Education Holding Group Co. Ltd, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower (the
"Borrower”) and the Company and Greentown Property Service Co.
Ltd, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, collectively,
as the guarantors entered into a facility agreement and related
financing documents (the “Facility Agreement”) with Standard
Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, in relation to a loan facility in the
principal amount of USD49 million with a term of three years.

Under the Facility Agreement, the Borrower and the Company
undertakes that, Mr. Song Weiping (a controlling shareholder of the
Company), Ms. Li Hairong and the persons acting in concert with them
(collectively, the “"Subject Shareholder”), will maintain no less than
25% ownership of the Company in aggregate, either directly or
indirectly, and they shall collectively remain as the largest shareholder
in the Company. Failure of the Subject Shareholders to comply with
the aforesaid obligations could constitute an event of default under
the Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2019, the Subject Shareholders were collectively
interested in approximately 57.76% of the total issued shares of the

Company.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 June 2019
for further details.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following parties are our connected persons.

1.

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company
Limited (“Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering”)
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged
in the provision of elevator maintenance services in the PRC
which is held as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment (with
51% of its equity interest being held by Greentown Holdings
(which is indirectly owned as to 40%, 39% and 21% by Mr. Song
Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, respectively), and
the remaining 49% equity interest being held by Ningbo
Ronghua Investment LLP (B K SR ER E S B X (ARG ®)),
which is in turn held as to 80% and 20% by Ms. Ju Yao (8#%) and
Ms. Li Haizhi (Z7872) (both family members of Ms. Li Hairong).
Therefore, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering is an
associate of Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo
and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a connected person of the
Company.

Zhejiang Lansong Supply Chain Management Company
Limited (“Lansong Supply Chain")

Lansong Supply Chain is held as to 51% and 49% by Zhejiang
Greentown Property Community Service Company Limited (a
subsidiary of the company) and Bluetown Agricultural Technology
Company Limited (“Bluetown Agricultural Technology”),
respectively. Bluetown Agricultural Technology is wholly-owned
by Bluetown China Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-
owned by Delta House Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is
wholly-owned by Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through
his wholly-owned company Osmanthus Garden Investment
Company Limited, is indirectly interested in 40% of Orchid
Garden Investment Company Limited, a controlling Shareholder
which holds approximately 36.57% of the total issued share
capital of the Company. Mr. Song Weiping is also the spouse of
Ms. Xia Yibo, a non-executive Director. Lansong Supply Chain is
therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and hence was a
connected person of the Company.

REBRERS
THEH ARMOBEAL -

1.

HIRBEESTIRAERAE (A
IHRBEEH
HMIMBERERIREANTEKINE
RAR] TBXBAETBEREHEHE
& R %5 - EL50% M s AN FHEIRE
B (A% A Ea izl (Z A
BIRARETEE SHFLERE—RK
Lt Bl 3 B 40% - 39% K 21% 1
H)FE  ER49% RAE SR BEIRARE
REARLEX(FRAER)KE A%
HBELTRFEZLEHRIFH 0%
K2 20% - A RFBRT T B FK G
B)HA BN IRBERER TRARE
FREE BRFELEL E-KRERF
BRZTHMBEA W RARBHEE
At e

MTEAHEREEARAT(E
RfptEE |)

B DA PR B8 e AR ) K B R AR IR TS (AR
RAZMBRR) REREERTEERA
Al ([ R ) 0 RIFFA 51% 5. 49%
st - BRI AERPEZERER
RAZEHA - MERPEERERAQF
8l f3 Delta House Limited 2 £ #E A +
Delta House Limited AR & F L2 E %
E-RBFEXEEBEBEL2ERF
Osmanthus Garden Investment Company

Limited fE1##E 5 A% I 5 Orchid Garden
Investment Company Limited 40% #z

1M Orchid Garden Investment Company
Limited Al B AR A 2 E 2 BATIRAL
3657% ° REFRENBIFNITEFE
—RE TR - Bt ERHEEASRE
FRAEZEEA  TERILANATZEE
At o

2019 EHRE SWREEELRAA

77



Report of Directors

ESERE

78

Zhejiang Greentown Football Club Company Limited 3. WMIZBERELBERAF(H
(“Zhejiang Greentown Football Club”) SRR R BRI LEER )

Zhejiang Greentown Football Club is 50%-owned by Greentown WL AR B BRBLSE B0 | AR 3045 IR BT
Holdings and Zhejiang Greentown Education Investment, it is BB IR ESF R S0% - #t
therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian BRETLE SHEXEME—RLK
and Ms. Xia Yibo and hence a connected person of the Company. TIBMBA UEAMAARRZEEA

+ o
Bluetown Agriculture Technology 4. ERBENE

Bluetown Agricultural Technology is wholly-owned by Bluetown
China Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Delta
House Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is wholly-owned by
Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through his wholly-owned
company Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited, is
indirectly interested in 40% of Orchid Garden Investment
Company limited, a controlling Shareholder which holds
approximately 36.57% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Song Weiping is also the spouse of Ms. Xia Yibo, a
non-executive Director. Bluetown Agriculture Technology is
therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and hence a
connected person of the Company.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
31 December 2019 in relation to renewal of continuing connected
transactions (the “Announcement”). Considering the previous
Sales Framework Agreement and the previous Supply of Goods
Agreement (as defined in the Announcement) would expire at
the same time on 31 December 2019, the Board has resolved to
renew the related agreements. Under the New Sales Framework
Agreement (as defined in the Announcement) for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2022 the annual caps will not
exceed RMB46,130,000, RMB54,772,000 and RMB65,033,000,
respectively; under the New Supply of Goods Framework
Agreement (as defined in the Announcement) for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2022 the annual caps will not
exceed RMB26,242,000, RMB30,178,000 and RMB34,704,000,
respectively.
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The Group has entered into a number of continuing connected ZAEBEEREER —RESBRZPEERESEA
transactions with its connected persons in the ordinary and usual iﬁi;lﬁfﬁk?tf‘ﬁﬁﬁuﬁ14AEIE—FE’\]EF|
course of business, which are subject to the reporting, annual review 3§ - FEERE  AERTHRFEBRETS -

and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

1. Provision of Elevator Maintenance Services by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to our Group
We engage the elevator maintenance services of Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering in the ordinary course of our
business.

Description of the Transaction

On 10 June 2016, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering
entered into an elevator maintenance services framework
agreement (the "Elevator Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement”) with our Company, as supplemented by a
supplemental elevator maintenance services agreement dated 6
November 2017. The Elevator Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement expired on 31 December 2018. On 28 December
2018, Greentown Property Service Group Company Limited
entered into a new elevator maintenance services agreement (the
“New Elevator Maintenance Services Agreement”) with
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to renew the Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement. Pursuant to the
New Elevator Maintenance Services Agreement, Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering agreed to provide elevator
maintenance services, including but not limited to conducting
annual inspections, safety maintenance, and providing repair
services to our Group for the properties projects managed by our
Group ("Elevator Maintenance Services”), for a term
commencing from 1 January 2019 until 31 December 2021.

Consideration

The fees charged for the Elevator Maintenance Services provided
by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to our Group was
determined based on (i) cost of raw materials and wages needed
for carrying out the Elevator Maintenance Services; and (ii) the
comparison of the fee quote provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong
Elevator Engineering to our Group with the fee quotes provided
by other independent third party elevator maintenance
companies engaged by our Group for its other property
management projects. When comparing the fee quotes, our
Group considered factors including the price, scope of services
and the efficiency and ability of the service provider to perform
such services in a timely manner. The New Elevator Maintenance
Services Agreement was entered into on normal commercial
terms.
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Annual Caps

Reference the announcements of the Company dated on 28
December 2018, our Directors estimate that the maximum annual
fee payable by our Group in relation to the New Elevator
Maintenance Services to be provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong
Elevator Engineering under the Elevator Maintenance Services
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021
would not exceed RMB20,795,334, RMB25,612,493 and
RMB31,545,528, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fee paid by the Group
for the Elevator Maintenance Services provided by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering amounted to RMB17,775,965
and the payment for the same period last year was
RMB16,343,446.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps of the Elevator
Maintenance Services provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering to the Group are expected to be more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the transactions under the New Elevator
Maintenance Services Agreement are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements, but are
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Services provided by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club to the Group

Zhejiang Greentown Football Cub provide certain specified areas
to Zhejiang Dual-City Culture for advertising the information of
products or services of third parties for promotion purposes.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Zhejiang Dual-City Culture and Creativity
Company Limited (“Zhejiang Dual-City Culture”), a subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the framework agreement with Zhejiang
Greentown Football Club and renewed on 28 December 2018.
Pursuant to which, Zhejiang Dual-City Culture would be entitled
to advertise in certain areas specified by Zhejiang Greentown
Football Club and Zhejiang Dual-City Culture would procure
independent sponsors to advertise their services and/or products
in such areas. The term of the agreement commenced from 1
January 2019 until 31 December 2021.
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Consideration

The fees charged to the Group by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club for the provision of the advertising service was determined
with reference to (i) the advertising fees charged by Zhejiang
Dual-City Culture from the independent sponsors which would
advertise their services and/or products in the areas specified by
Hangzhou Greentown Football Club; (i) the total cost incurred by
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture with respect to procuring such
independent sponsors; and (iii) a margin to be deducted
therefrom, which is not less favorable than the margin applied to
other independent third party advertising space suppliers of
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture.

Annual caps

Reference the announcements of the Company dated on 28
December 2018. The Directors estimated that the maximum
annual amount payable by the Group in respect of the advertising
services for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021
would not exceed RMB24,000,000, RMB28,800,000 and
RMB34,560,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the advertising services was
RMB16,811,321, and payment for the same period last year was
RMB18,267,925.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps of the
advertising Services provided by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club to the Group are expected to be more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the transactions under the Framework Agreement are
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Services provided by Lansong Supply Chain to the
Group

We receive the goods supply service provided by Lansong
Supply Chain to the Group in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 10 January 2017, Greentown Property Management, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales
framework agreement with Lansong Supply Chain and renewed
on 31 December 2019. Pursuant to which, Lansong Supply Chain
agreed to supply various types of agricultural goods and
products, including but not limited to fresh products and foods
to Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2020 until 31
December 2022.

Consideration

The fees charged to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain for the
provision of goods was determined at arm’s length with reference
to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale market prices
published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC from time to
time; (i) the purchasing costs of such goods and the operation
costs (including packaging, processing and distribution costs)
incurred by Lansong Supply Chain for supplying goods to
Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries or
branch companies under the Sales Framework Agreement. The
prices for the goods to be supplied by Lansong Supply Chain to
Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries will not
be less favourable to the Group than those available from
independent third parties in similar transactions.

Annual caps

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company
dated on 10 January 2017 and 31 December 2019 respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2019, the maximum amount
payable by the Group to Lansong Supply Chain will not exceed
RMB 97,300,000. The Directors estimated that the maximum
annual amount payable by the Group to Lansong Supply Chain
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2022 would not
exceed RMB46,130,000, RMB54,772,000 and RMB65,033,000
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the goods supplied by Lansong Supply
Chain was RMB40,617,423 and the payment for the same period
last year was RMB30,161,832.
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As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain
are expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions under the Sales Framework Agreement are subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements,
but are exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Services provided by the Group to Bluetown
Agricultural Technology

We provide goods supply service to Bluetown Agricultural
Technology in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Lansong Supply Chain, a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the framework agreement with Bluetown
Agricultural Technology and renewed on 31 December 2019.
Pursuant to which, Lansong Supply Chain agreed to supply
various types of agricultural goods and products, including but
not limited to fresh products and food to Bluetown Agricultural
Technology and/or its subsidiaries for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020 until 31 December 2022.

Consideration

The fees charged to Bluetown Agricultural Technology by the
Group for the supply of goods was determined at arm'’s length
with reference to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale
market prices published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC
from time to time; and (ii) the price of the same or comparable
type of various goods sold to independent third parties in its
ordinary and usual course of business. In determining the price,
the Group would also collect the relevant market information,
review and compare the costs and profits of transactions in the
most recent year for the provision of the same or similar type of
agricultural goods and products with at least two independent
third parties.
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Annual caps

Reference are made to the announcements of the Company
dated on 13 August 2018 and 31 December 2019, for the year
ended 31 December 2019, the maximum amount payable by
Bluetown Agricultural to the Group will not exceed RMB
32,000,000. The Directors estimated that the maximum annual
amount payable by Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the
Group for each of the three years ending 31 December 2022
would not exceed RMB26,242,000, RMB30,178,000 and
RMB34,704,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount payable by
Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the Group in respect of the
goods supply service was RMB21,210,825, and the payment for
the same period last year was RMB29,927,780.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided by the Group are expected to be more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions under the Supply of
Goods Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements, but are
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
the Prospectus and the announcements of the Company
published on 10 January 2017, 6 November 2017, 13 August
2018, 28 December 2018 and 31 December 2019.

The Company adjusts the scope and amount of continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps exempted from
disclosure (where necessary) in accordance with its internal
control procedures. During the Reporting Period, the Company
has followed the pricing policies and guidelines for each of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in this annual report
when determining the price and terms of such transactions
conducted. The Directors are of the view that the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure
that transactions are so conducted.
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During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued their letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company's
board of directors.

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that
causes us to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

3. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.
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4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
their attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules,
except for the transactions described in this paragraph headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules have been complied with.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
the Company had no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with the
provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
disclosure of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “CONNECTED TRANSACTION" in this Report
of Directors, during the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has entered into any material contract with the
controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries. And there is no entering into of any material contract in
respect of the services provided by the controlling Shareholders or any
of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF

THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 23 January 2020, the Company issued a total of 33.15 million share
options to an associate of an independent non-executive Director and
certain employees of the Company (the “2020 Grantees”), subject to
acceptance by the 2020 Grantees (the “2020 Grant of Option”).
Please refer to the announcement issued by the Company on 23
January 2020 for further details.
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The Company, Sail Link, Lilac International Investment , Ms. Li Hairong,

Juntion Development and Orchid Garden Investment entered into a
framework agreement on 27 December 2019, in relation to, among
others, the sale of 139,465,661 Shares and the relevant possible
subscription of Shares, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 27 December 2019 and 6 January 2020 for details.

Save as the disclosures above and the matters disclosed in the note 39
to the financial statements, no other significant events which have an
impact on the Company have occurred after the end of the Reporting
Period.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company was not engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance. References are
made to the announcements issued by the Company on 31 May 2018
and 2 April 2019, respectively, in relation to the litigation (the
“Litigation”) of which Greentown Property Management Service
Group Co., Ltd. (£ M X R % & B B R A 7 ) (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) was named as one of the nine defendants
in a transcript of the statement of claim with case no. “(2018) #7101 R4/
1357 5% ". The owner and their families, which were residents in one of
our managed communities, as the plaintiff, claimed against nine
entities, which included our subsidiary, fire department, construction
company and housing services company, etc. for the personal and
property damages caused by arson. The Litigation has been settled
and the Company has fulfilled its obligations under the letter of
mediation issued by the Intermediate People’s Court of Hangzhou City
to settle the case (the “Mediation Letter”). The Board believes that
the amount of compensation involved in the Mediation Letter will not
affect the normal operation of the Group. Meanwhile, the Company
will take reference from the case, and will coordinate with the owner
residents to comprehensively strengthen the safety of the communities.

Save as disclosed above, no litigation or claim of material importance
is known to the Directors to be pending or threatening against the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year of 2019, the Company maintained liability insurance for
Directors and senior management (being the liability insurance for
Directors and senior management and prospectus liability insurance)
to provide the appropriate coverage for the Directors and senior
management of the Company.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) had,
together with the management and external auditor of the Company
(the "Auditor”), reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 89 to 108 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as of the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The auditors of the Company has not changed in the past three years.
KPMG was appointed as the Auditor for the year ended 31 December
2019. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as Auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Li Hairong
Chairman

Hangzhou, 31 March 2020
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors its business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the
senior management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (each a "Board Committee”
together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the
Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

and,

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and acted in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors, three non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Shou Bainian

Ms. Xia Yibo

Mr. Wang Guangjian (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

Ms. Wu Aiping (Appointed on 6 January 2020)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has, at all times,
met the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules

relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company believes that the diversity of the Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s
performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of,
amongst other things, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on merits and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of the diversity of
the Board. The Board diversity policy is summarized below:

The Company attaches great importance to the gender diversity of the
Board: women now hold 27% of the total directorship, which is in line
with and higher than the ratio of most listed companies.

The Board includes Directors with diverse backgrounds: executive
Directors have extensive management experience and are in charge of
the principal businesses of the Company; non-executive Directors are
highly experienced in corporate management, hence they are able to
provide effective recommendations on the Company’s operation and
development; independent non-executive Directors have experience
in the property management industry, investment, finance, corporate
governance and the international market.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the
Company considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed "Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
with any other Director and chief executive of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Board Committees.

As regards code provision A.6.6 of the CG Code, which requires each
director to disclose the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments, the
identity of the public companies or organizations and an indication of
the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments and any subsequent changes to the Company in a
timely manner.
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Induction a